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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWN DN

The financial period ended 30 June 2010 was a milestone
of development of Goldin Financial Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) which starting to engage in the factoring business
from July 2009. The board of directors (the “Board” or the
“Directors”) of the Company believes that it is a favorable
timing to develop and diversify the business segments into
factoring business in order to acquire a thriving business
growth under the rebound of global economy and international
trading in 2009.

The Group has appointed Ernst & Young as the auditors of
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”)
to replace the vacancy arising from the resignation of Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu. The Group will maintain its transparent
approach towards the disclosure of financial statements,

and raising shareholder’s confidence to the Group.

Since the launching of the Group’s factoring business in
July 2009, in order to fully and optimally reflect the business
operations of the Group, the financial year end date of
the Company was changed from 31 December to 30 June
in 2009, it should be noted that the 2009/2010 financial
information presented herein which covered the eighteen
months from 1 January 2009 to 30 June 2010 are being
compared with that for financial period which covered the
twelve months ended 31 December 2008. The difference in
duration of the two financial periods should be considered

when making year-on-year comparisons.
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Turnover for the eighteen months ended 30 June 2010 from
continuing operations reached approximately HK$249.3 million
(twelve months ended 31 December 2008: HK$14.5 million),
representing an increase of approximately 1,619.3% compared
to that of 2008. Net profit recorded was approximately
HK$127.0 million compared to net loss of HK$147.5 million
for 2008. The growth in profit was mainly attributable to
introduction of brand new factoring business since July 2009
and financial investment business since August 2009.

With the introduction of the factoring and financial investment
businesses during the period under review, the core businesses
of the Group have been restructured into factoring business
and financial investment. Under the rebound of global
financial economy as well as worldwide trading business
from economic tsunami, the new businesses of the Group
achieved a satisfactory operating result during the reviewing
period.

Factoring business

According to China Custom Statistics, total export volume
of first five months in 2010 reached 567.74 billion United
States dollars, representing an increase of 33.2% when
compared to the same period last year. In which, export
volume of electrical and electronic product accounted
for 137.18 billion United States dollars, increase by 36%
when compared with the same period last year. The growth
in international trading highly favors factoring business

development in China.
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Factoring business (Continued)

“Annual Review 2010” issued by Factors Chain International
(“FCI”), which is a global network of leading factoring
companies aimed to facilitate international trade through
factoring and its member transactions represent more than
80% of the world’s international factoring volume, indicated
that total factoring volume of China in 2009 increased by
approximately 22.4% while factoring volume of United States
and Japan dropped 11.5% and 21.4% respectively. This
demonstrates factoring business in China is experiencing
a high growth period.

In order to capture the vast room of growth in factoring
industry, the Group unrolled factoring business in July 2009,
established the first wholly foreign-owned factoring company
in the China, with the capital of over HK$3,075.3 million
raised through two rights issues in June and November 2009.
The Group embarked its international factoring business
mainly on medium-sized enterprises in electronic products
industry in Hong Kong and China.

In June 2009, the group was admitted as an associate member
of FCI. Moreover, the Group has entered into a strategic
partnership with Bank of China and Branch Banking and
Trust Company as to create synergies in operating factoring

business in the reviewing period.

To further tap the growth potential of factoring business in
China, the Group obtained a license from the Shanghai Trade
and Industry Bureau in setting up a subsidiary in Shanghai
with a registered capital of US$99.67 million in September
2009 and commenced operation in February 2010. The
Group will continue to consider the increase of registered
capital of the Shanghai’s subsidiary.
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Factoring business (Continued)

During the period under review, the Group generated revenue
of approximately HK$73.3 million from the factoring segment
and recorded a segment profit of approximately HK$55.4
million. The Group has become an important player among
FCI associate members in Hong Kong with outstanding
performance and high ranking. This remarkable achievement
has proved the change of core businesses to be successful
in bringing in profitability to the Group.

Financial investment

Under low interest rate environment and relatively low valuation
of both Hong Kong and the United States capital market,
the Group considers investing in the capital market which
has potential to generate a higher return while compared
with holding the fund on hand.

In order to capture investment opportunities in the fluctuating
environment and obtain a high return, the Group has engaged
in financial investment since August 2009. For the eighteen
months ended 30 June 2010, the Group’s revenue and profit
generated from financial investment segment amounted to
HK$154.6 million and HK$150.0 million respectively. In the
future, the Group will consider delegating more resources
to this segment in order to maximize the return from the
capital market with adequate internal control and high
standard risk management.

Restaurant operation

The restaurant operation has continuously contributed income
to the Group during the period under review. The turnover
from the restaurant operation for the eighteen months ended
30 June 2010 amounted to approximately HK$21.3 million
(twelve months ended 31 December 2008: HK$14.5 million),
representing an increase of 46.9% compared to that of 2008.
Net loss of this segment for the eighteen months ended 30
June 2010 is approximately HK$0.2 million (twelve months
ended 31 December 2008: HK$2.3 million). The overall
business environment for the restaurant operation was still
underperformed.
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Property investment

Capturing the sudden rebound of property market since
March 2009, the Group has disposed the subsidiaries which
carried out all the Group’s operations of property investment
at an aggregate consideration of HK$19,833,000 in October
2009. This segment recorded a profit of approximately HK$3.9
million compared to the loss of approximately HK$0.7 million
for the twelve months ended 31 December 2008. The Group
will review property market situation from time to time, and
take up any long term properties investment opportunities
whenever it is favorable.

The Directors believe that the Group is steering into a right
path full of opportunities of growth after restructuring the
businesses.

Looking forward, factoring business will remain the main
revenue driver of the Group. In the international market, the
Group will strenuously seek for opportunities in expanding
into other industry sectors, while domestically, the Group will
further explore into other potential business locations, such
as Guangdong Province. However, the Group will remain
prudent in selecting clients which have high credibility in order
to control business risks. Also, the Group is strengthening
the factoring business by beefing up the manpower in areas
of sales and marketing as well as after sales services.
In addition, as to fully utilize the Group’s resources and
expertise in financing, the Group has obtained the money
lending licenses in 2009 and would enter the money lending
business in the coming year.

Diversifying income stream always be the Group’s core
mission, the Group is actively seeking opportunities in
developing new businesses, such as wine business. The
wine business, including wine future, wine trading and
wine storage, is a widely accepted way of investment and
business which is getting more popular in Hong Kong and
China. With broadening business horizon, the Group believes
that sustainable growth will be promoted and shareholders’
value will be enhanced.
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Liquidity, financial resources and gearing

During the financial period, the Group successfully raised
approximately HK$572.0 million and HK$2,537.6 million
through two rights issues in June and November 2009
respectively which would be used for the development of
factoring business, enhancing general working capital of
the Group and future investments.

As disclosed in September 2009, the Group entered into a
subscription agreement which the Company has conditionally
agreed to issue and a subscriber has conditionally agreed
to subscribe in cash for a convertible note in the principal
amount of US$180.5 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,398.9 million). However, one of the conditions precedent
for completion in obtaining necessary approvals and licenses
for the increase in the registered capital of the Group’s
subsidiary in Shanghai, has not been fulfilled on 30 June
2010, therefore the subscription agreement was terminated.
However, the Board considered that the termination of the
subscription agreement has no significant adverse impact
on the Group’s business, operations, financial or liquidity

positions.

As at 30 June 2010, the Group’s working capital amounted
to HK$3,052.0 million (31 December 2008: HK$10.4 million),
representing an increase of approximately 29,246.2%
compared to 2008.

As at 30 June 2010, the Group had approximately HK$1,537.9
million in cash, compared with approximately HK$20.8
million as of 31 December 2008. The Group maintained a
strong working capital position during the reviewing financial
period.
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Liquidity, financial resources and gearing (Continued)
As at 30 June 2010, the Group had other borrowing of
approximately HK$85.4 million (31 December 2008: nil).
The gearing ratio, calculated in terms of total borrowings
divided by total equities, was approximately 2.6% (31
December 2008: nil).

As the Group’s core businesses are in Hong Kong and China,
transactions are mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars,
United States dollars and Renminbi. The exchange rate
fluctuation between Hong Kong dollars and United States
dollars is relatively stable, therefore the Group’s exposure to
such risk is minimized. However, in anticipation of Renminbi
appreciation, it is expected to have a positive impact on
the Group’s performance.

Contingent Liabilities
The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities
as at 30 June 2010.

As at 30 June 2010, the Group has about 57 employees
(31 December 2008: 40 employees). Total staff costs were
approximately HK$30.4 million (twelve months ended 31
December 2008: HK$24.9 million). The remuneration policy
and package of the Group’s employees are structured in
accordance to market terms and statutory requirements
where appropriate. In addition, the Group also provides
other staff benefits such as medical insurance, mandatory
provident fund and share options to motivate and reward
employees at all levels in order to achieve the Group’s
business performance targets.
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

The board of directors (the “Board” or the “Directors”) of
Goldin Financial Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) herein present their
report and the audited consolidated financial statements of
the Group for the period from 1 January 2009 to 30 June
2010 (the “Period”).

The principal activities of the Company is investment holding.
The activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note
19 to the financial statements.

The name of the Company was changed to “Goldin Financial
Holdings Limited” and adopted the Chinese name “SE &
R (£ E) B BR A |7 for identification purposes. The proposed
change of company name was passed by the shareholders
of the Company at the special general meeting held on 13
May 2009 and have become effective on 27 May 2009.

The Group’s profit for the period ended 30 June 2010 and
the state of affairs of the Company and the Group at that
date are set out in the financial statements on pages 43
to 159.

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK2.0 cents per share (twelve months ended 31 December
2008: Nil) for the period ended 30 June 2010. Conditional
upon approval by the shareholders at the forthcoming 2010
annual general meeting of the Company, the proposed final
dividend will be payable on Wednesday, 17 November 2010
to shareholders of the Company whose names appear on
the registers of members of the Company on Wednesday,
27 October 2010.
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The Company’s register of members will be closed from
Monday, 25 October 2010 to Wednesday, 27 October
2010 (both dates inclusive) for the purpose of ascertaining
shareholders’ entitlement to the attendance of the forthcoming
2010 annual general meeting of the Company and the
proposed final dividend. No transfer of shares will be
registered during this period.

To qualify for the final dividend, all share transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar, Tricor
Secretaries Limited, at 26/F., Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration no later
than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 22 October 2010.

A financial summary of the Group for the past five financial
years is set out on page 160.

Details of movements in the plant and equipment and
investment properties of the Group are set out in notes 16
and 17 to the financial statements, respectively.

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
for the period are set out in notes 31 to the financial
statements.

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis
to existing shareholders.
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Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and
the Group during the Period are set out in note 33(b) to
the financial statements and the consolidated statement of

changes in equity respectively.

At 30 June 2010, the Company’s reserve available for
distribution to shareholders, calculated in accordance
with the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
amounted to HK$68,373,000, of which HK$66,411,000
has been proposed as a final dividend for the Period. The
Company’s share premium account as at 30 June 2010 is
HK$2,837,389,000.

The Directors who held office during the Period and up to

the date of this report are:

Non-executive Director and Chairman of the Board
Mr. Pan Sutong

Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Hau Yan, Helvin
Mr. Zhou Dengchao

Ms. Hou Qin (MNote

Mr. Du Peng (Note2)

Mr. Wang Zhixiong Note 8)

Non-executive Director
Professor Huang Xiaojian

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Tso Hon Sai, Bosco

Ms. Hui Wai Man, Shirley

Mr. Tang Yiu Wing

ARARRAEENRANAHEZ FREBDFIE
7 BB B TS SRR M T 33(b) R fr &

WK -

BEERE-NN\—FRREEEBR]) A
. ARBR_ZT—ZTFA=F+HBAH
2R TR 2 [ 53%68,373,0008 L &
H66,411,0008 TRAHANEZRARKRE -
KRR ZE—ZTEFNA=-THZERME
{88E A2,837,389,000/8 7T °

RAHEEREBEEARERHLEIEEZES
/(N

FUTESRESEXR
EERLE

HITES
"ERLE
BERBEE
(B 2= 4+ (i)
e 2o A (MiE2)
F 2 S A (i)

FUTES

BYFHTES
BERBERE
AFEHLE

ZB2BhA-ZEFER

13



Goldin Financial Holdings Limited

14

Report of the Directors

EEEHRE

Notes:

1. Ms. Hou Qin was re-designated from a non-executive Director to
an executive Director with effect from 1 June 2009.

2. Mr. Du Peng resigned as an executive Director with effect from
1 February 2010.

3. Mr. Wang Zhixiong resigned as an executive Director with effect
from 4 January 2010.

In accordance with Bye-law 99 of the Company’s Bye-laws,
Ms. Hou Qin, Ms. Hui Wai Man, Shirley and Mr. Tang Yiu Wing
shall retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company.

The term of office of each Director, including the independent
non-executive Directors, is for a period up to his/her retirement

by rotation in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

The Company had received an annual confirmation of
independence from each of the independent non-executive
Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The Company was of the view that all the independent non-
executive Directors met the independence guidelines as set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are independent

in accordance with the terms of the guidelines.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company
or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation

other than statutory compensation.
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As at 30 June 2010, the directors and chief executive of the RZE—ZFXA=Z+TH ARAEEK
Company had the following interests and short positions in BETBABERARR REBEEE(ER
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company RBESREERI(TEZEFRASEMN])E
and its associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XVER) < Betn - RO RESF+THEB T
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO”)) as P a0 8 AR IR 7E 5 R HA B 160 553521478
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 FTHEEzELMRE EmR R+ 2
of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the ITHBETAEFTETESFRSNELESFA]
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities ([TZ2ESFRI D BEME ARR) KRBT
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) mMKRE

set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules:

Long position interests in the shares and underlying ARATARGBREBRDZHERESR !
shares of the Company:

Number of ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each held

FESREE10ETZERBREE
Number of
underlying
shares held
Personal Family Corporate Other under equity Percentage
Name of director interests interests interests interests  derivatives Total holdings
RERANTE
IRMEER
BEspg fHARS EQY 4 HEER Hipis RG#E g BRESKL
(Note i) (Note i)
(W3 (P 5ii)
Pan Sutong 119,785,000 - 2,184,475,800 - - 2,304,260,800 69.39
/\éﬁ% (Note iii)
(Wi3Eiit)
Wong Hau Yan, Helvin - - - - 3,000,000 3,000,000 0.09
Zhou Dengchao 1,000,000 - - - 3,000,000 4,000,000 0.12
A%
Hou Qin 1,560,000 - - - 3,000,000 4,560,000 0.14
&=

—zshn/ —s558% 15
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Long position interests in the shares and underlying

shares of the Company: (Continued)
Notes:

(i) The interests in the underlying shares represented share options
granted by the Company to these directors as beneficial owners,
the details of which are set out in the section below headed
“SHARE OPTION SCHEME”.

(i) The percentage of interest in the issued share capital was calculated
on the basis of 3,320,549,520 shares of the Company in issue
at 30 June 2010.

(i)  The2,184,475,800 shares of the Company comprise (i) 2,141,085,800
shares in the Company and 43,390,000 shares in the Company
held by Goldin Global Holdings Limited (“GGH”) and Clear Jade
International Limited respectively which are wholly and beneficially
owned by Mr. Pan Sutong (“Mr. Pan”), a non-executive Director
and the chairman of the Board.

GGH is a wholly owned subsidiary and hence a controlled corporation
of Goldin Investment Holdings Limited (“Goldin Investment”). Goldin
Investment is a wholly owned subsidiary and hence a controlled
corporation of Goldin Real Estate Financial Holdings Limited
(“Goldin Real Estate Financial”). Goldin Real Estate Financial is
wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Pan.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2010, none of
the directors or chief executive of the Company had any
interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be
kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code of the Listing Rules.
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On 28 January 2004, the shareholders of the Company
approved the adoption of the share option scheme (the
“Scheme”). The purpose of the Scheme is to provide incentives
or rewards to participants thereunder for their contribution
to the Group and/or enable the Group to recruit and retain
high-calibre employees and attract human resources that
are valuable to the Group and any entity in which the
Group holds an equity interest (“Invested Entity”). Eligible
participants of the Scheme include mainly the directors,
employees, suppliers of goods or services, customers,
shareholders, business partners and professional advisers
of the Company or any Invested Entity.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all share options to be granted under the
Scheme is 94,862,272 shares of the Company (representing
approximately 2.86% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of this annual report), being an
amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares
in issue of the Company at 20 July 2009, being the date
on which the shareholders of the Company approving the
refreshment of the limit in respect of the granting of share
options under the Scheme.

The maximum number of shares issuable under the share
options to each eligible participant in the Scheme within
any 12-month period, is limited to 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of share
options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting. The exercise period of the
share options granted is determinable by the directors,
save that the period commences on the date of which the
offer is made and ends on a date which is not later than
10 years from the date of the offer of the share options
subject to any provisions of the Scheme determining the
rights of the grantees. The offer of a grant of share option
may be accepted within 28 days from the date of the offer,
upon payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total
by the grantee.

RZBENE—-A-+N\B  A2aKRE
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WASBSERB2EARANERELZE
BRSNS AKEEARERIRBESE
B WRSIHAEERAEEFFEME
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= EE EndRBHER - BF K
R EBAERHREEER -
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The exercise price of the share options is determinable by
the directors, but may not be less than the highest of (i) the
Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on the
date of the offer of the share options; (ii) the average Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of the offer and
(iii) the nominal value of a share of the Company.

The Scheme became effective on 29 January 2004 and,
unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force
for 10 years from that date.

Details of movements in the options under the Scheme during
the Period and options outstanding as at the beginning and
end of the Period are set out below:

BhEZTEEVHAESRET  BE1ED
ROARRB RO RBREZZA R ZHR
FrRTE « (NARARDNERZSHA N
Al A AR 5 B 2 B 32 P T 15 Y i 8 R (i) A<
RABRMzEE=EF2HSE °

HEE-EEMF AT ABRER
B IFEBON SIS RT - T RIGH 3% B s+
FREN -

Zat B TERER AR Z8) RN Y
N BB B ) AR AT 2 B IR M w15 #0714
T~

Number of share options
LI EE
As at As at Exercise
Name of 1 January 30 June Price  Exercisable
Participant Grant date 2009 Granted Reclassification ~ Exercised ~ Cancelled Lapsed  Surrendered 2010 per share  Period
H-ZENE H-%-3%
BHARS RiHAS -f-8 Bk Eif7E i Bl B&M BHE  ARZTR BRARE fRH
(dlom.yyyy) (HKS)  (dc.ram.yyy)
(AEF) (87) (B.AE)
DirectorsE%
Wong Hau Yan, Helvin -~ 22.7.2009 - 1,000,000 - - - - - 1,000,000 0.654  22.1.2010-
21.7.2019
B2
22.7.2009 - 1,000,000 - - - - - 1,000,000 0654 22.1.2011 -
21.7.2019
22.7.2009 - 1,000,000 - - - - - 1,000,000 0654 22.1.2012-
21.7.2019
Zhou Dengchao 22.7.2009 - 1,000,000 - - - - - 1,000,000 0.654  22.1.2010-
21.7.2019
REd
22.7.2009 - 1,000,000 - - - - - 1,000,000 0654  22.1.2011 -
21.7.2019
22.7.2009 - 1,000,000 - - - - - 1,000,000 0654 22.1.2012-
21.7.2019
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Number of share options
EhRHA
As at As at Exercise
Name of 1 January 30 June Price  Exercisable
Participant Grant date 2009 Granted Reclassification ~ Exercised ~ Cancelled Lapsed  Surrendered 2010 per share  Period
HZZE0E H-%-%%
SRS it -f-8 BRY Bif7E Bk BHY B&H BHE  ~RZtE BRARE  fRH
(dd.mmyyy) (HS) - (ddmmyy)
(R.AF) (Bn) (R.AE)
Hou Qin 22.7.2009 - 1,000,000 - - - - - 1,000,000 0.654  22.1.2010-
21.7.2019
&z
22.7.2009 - 1,000,000 - - - - - 1,000,000 0.654  22.1.2011 -
21.7.2019
22.7.2009 - 1,000,000 - - - - - 1,000,000 0.65¢  22.1.2012-
21.7.2019
Du Peng 22.1.2009 - 1,000,000 {1,000,000) - - - - 0 0.654  22.1.2010-
o) 21.7.2019
it
(hi) 22.7.2009 - 1,000,000 (1,000,000) - - - - 0 0.65¢  22.1.2011 -
21.7.2019
22.7.2009 - 1,000,000 {1,000,000) - - - - 0 0.65¢  22.1.2012-
21.1.2019
Wang Zhixiong 22.1.2009 - 1,000,000 - - - (1,000,000) - 0 0.65¢  22.1.2010-
Mok 21.7.2019
fitii
(2 2.1.2009 - 1,000,000 - - - (1,000,000) - 0 0.654 2212011 -
21.7.2019
22.7.2009 - 1,000,000 - - - (1,000,000) - 0 0654 22.1.2012-
21.7.2019
Employees 22.7.2009 - 3,000,000 - - - - - 3,000,000 0.654  22.7.2009 -
(in aggregate 21.7.2019
]
(&%) 22.7.2009 - - 1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000 0.65¢  22.1.2010-
21.7.2019
2.1.2009 - - 1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000 0654 2212011 -
21.7.2019
22.7.2009 - - 1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000 0654 22.1.2012 -
21.7.2019
23.7.2009 - 2,190,000 - (295,000) - - - 1,895,000 0.652  23.1.2010-
Mok 2.1.2019
(Hit3)
23.7.2009 - 2,190,000 - - - - - 2,190,000 0.652 2312011 -
2.7.2019
23.7.2009 - 2,920,000 - - - - - 2,920,000 0652 2812012 -
2.7.2019
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Number of share options
ERRHA
As at As at Exercise
Name of 1 January 30 June Price  Exercisable
Participant Grant date 2009 Granted Reclassification ~ Exercised ~ Cancelled Lapsed  Surrendered 210 per share  Period
HZZENE H-%-%%
SRS it -A-A BRE Eif7E i BHY BAH BHE  AASTR SRORE GRS
(d.mm.yyyy) (HKS) (ddmm.yyy)
(A.RE) (8n) (R.AE)
Others 23.7.2009 - 1,000,000 - - - - - 1,000,000 0.652  23.7.2009 -
(in aggregate) 2.1.2019
it
(af) 23.7.2009 - 19140000 - (75,000) - - (133950000 5,670,000 0852 23.1.2010-
Mok 2.7.2019
fits)
23.7.2009 - 19,140,000 - - - - (18,395,000 5,745,000 0652 2312011 -
22.1.2019
23.7.2009 - 25,520,000 - - - - (17,860,000 7,660,000 0652 2312012 -
22.1.2019
90,100,000 0 (370,000) 0 (3000000 (4406500000 42,080,000
Notes: FfeE -
1. Mr. Du Peng resigned as an executive Director with effect from 1. HBEAEEHITNTES B BH=F—%

1 February 2010. He continues his service for the Group after
the resignation. The options granted to him were reallocated on
February 2010.

2. Mr. Wang Zhixiong resigned as an executive Director with effect
from 4 January 2010. The options granted to him were lapsed
on 4 January 2010.

3. The weighted average closing price of the Company’s shares
traded on the Stock Exchange immediately before the date on
which the options were exercised was HK$0.90.

The vesting period for each of the above outstanding
options is from its date of grant up to and including the
date immediately preceding the commencement of its
exercisable period.
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Both the closing prices of the shares of the Company on
21 July 2009 (the immediate preceding date of granting the
options on 22 July 2009) and 22 July 2009 (the immediate
preceding date of granting the options on 23 July 2009)
were HK$0.65 per share. Subsequent to the adjustment
of the share prices for the rights issue of the Company
in November 2009, the closing prices of the Company on
21 July 2009 and 22 July 2009 were adjusted to HK$0.95
per share.

Save as disclosed in the section "CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS" below, no Director had a material interest,
either directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance
to the business of the Group to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party during the Period.

Save as disclosed in the sections “DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES” and “SHARE
OPTION SCHEME” above, at no time during the period
were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any
director or their respective spouses or minor children, or
were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the directors to acquire such rights in any other
body corporate.
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As at 30 June 2010, the following persons (other than any
directors or chief executive of the Company) were substantial
shareholders of the Company (as defined in the Listing
Rules) and had interests or short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register

required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO:

Name of shareholder

Nature of interest

R_F—FFAASHE  TRAL(AR
AZEMEFRESTRALR) BAR
AEHERETRANZEERR - RALA
A2 IRt R AR 15 b B SR AR PR 18 2B
SR E PSR ATEE 2 BRM
ZHEIAA

Number of
shares/underlying
shares interested

or deemed to
be interested

Percentage to
the issued
share capital of
the Company

BERBEREB

EEEZZRG, HARAREBIT
RREH EatE HERGOHE BEAzES K
(Note i) (Note ii)
(D) (GED)
Goldin Global Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 2,141,085,800 64.48
IR IR BRIE IR B R A A EnEEEA
Goldin Investment Interest of controlled 2,141,085,800 64.48
__Holdings Limited __corporation
IR EERABR AR SPEGEE R
Goldin Real Estate Financial Interest of controlled 2,141,085,800 64.48

__Holdings Limited
=R R EZERAR AR

Notes:

__corporations
EEHNEEER

(i)

(if)

Goldin Global Holdings Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary and
hence a controlled corporation of Goldin Investment Holdings
Limited (“Goldin Investment”). Goldin Investment is a wholly owned
subsidiary and hence a controlled corporation of Goldin Real
Estate Financial Holdings Limited (“Goldin Real Estate Financial”).
Goldin Real Estate Financial is wholly and beneficially owned by
Mr. Pan Sutong, a non-executive director of the Company and
the chairman of the Board whose interests in the shares of the
Company are disclosed in the paragraph entitled “DIRECTORS’
AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN SECURITIES” above.

The percentage of interest in the issued share capital was calculated
on the basis of 3,320,549,520 shares of the Company in issue
at 30 June 2010.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2010, the Company
had not been notified of any other persons (other than
any directors or chief executive of the Company) who had
an interest or a short position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of
the SFO.

In the period under review, sales to the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for 30% of the Group’s total sales
for the eighteen months ended 30 June 2010, and sales
to the largest customer included therein amounted to 24%.
Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted
for 68% of the Group’s total purchases and the purchases from
the largest supplier included therein amounted to 49%.

Non of the Directors or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the directors,
own more than 5% of the Company'’s issued share capital)
had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest

customers.

BREXHIEEEN R-F-—FFRA=
TH ARRAUEEFEFRMEMAL(RR
AlZEMEEFRRHITRABRINNRAR
Az BB P HEALENRIEE
H R BIRPIEIB6HEARAAETHFELZ
Btz @SR E -

REBEHA AEERE&RREFPAHEZ
HERLWAEBE#HE_T—TF A=+
B+ /\EABHEFE230%  HF&EA
BEFMEZHERR24% - AEE L AR
AREEEAMIE2RBEEAEEARERE
268%  HAGAHEEMEZRBER
49% °
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On 8 December 2009, the Company entered into a master
services agreement (the “Master Services Agreement”) with
Goldin Investment Advisers Limited (“GIAL”) in respect of the
provision of financial services, includes (a) dealing services
in securities, futures and options contracts and other
related services; and (b) corporate finance advisory services
concerning compliance with the Listing Rules and the Code
on Takeovers and Mergers, the offering of securities and
corporate restructuring, for a fixed term commencing from
20 January 2010 to 30 June 2012. Details of the Master
Services Agreement was disclosed in a circular dated 23
December 2009 issued by the Company.

Mr. Pan Sutong is a non-executive Director, the Chairman of
the Board and the controlling shareholder of the Company
and he beneficially owns the entire interests in GIAL. Pursuant
to the Listing Rules, Mr. Pan is therefore a connected person
of the Company and GIAL is an associate of Mr. Pan and
is therefore an associate of a connected person of the
Company. Accordingly, the financial services contemplated
under the Master Services Agreement constitute continuing
connected transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

The Directors have reviewed and confirmed that the continuing
connected transactions mentioned above are based on normal
commercial terms which are made on an arm’s length basis.
The Directors are also of the view that the Master Services
Agreement and the continuing connected transactions are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company
and the Shareholders as a whole.
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Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the Board
engaged the auditors of the Company to perform certain
agreed upon procedures in respect of the continuing
connected transactions of the Group. The auditors have
reported their factual findings on these procedures to the
independent non-executive Directors. The Directors (including
independent non-executive Directors) have reviewed the
continuing connected transactions and the report of the
auditors, and have confirmed that the transactions had
been entered into by the Company in the ordinary course
of its business, on normal commercial terms, on terms no
less favourable to the Group than terms available to or from
independent third parties, and in accordance with the terms
of the agreement governing such transactions that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of
the Company as a whole.

The Company repurchased 34 ordinary shares in the Company
through the Stock Exchange for a consideration of HK$0.019
per share. The repurchases were effected by the Directors
to avoid the fractional shares raised by the proposed capital
reorganisation of the Company. The aforesaid shares were
cancelled on 20 February 2009.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities during the eighteen months
ended 30 June 2010.
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The Company is committed to maintain the high standard of
corporate governance practices. Information on the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in
the Corporate Governance Report on pages 30 to 39.

Based on information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
Annual Report, the Company has maintained the prescribed
public float under the Listing Rules.

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company to re-appoint Messrs.
Ernst & Young as auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
RE=EEg
Goldin Financial Holdings Limited

SRTH(KEE)BRAF

Pan Sutong

Chairman
*E

Hong Kong, 9 September 2010
HE  —E-ZEFNANE
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Biographies of the Directors
EEER

Mr. Pan Sutong, aged 47, was appointed a non-executive
Director and the Chairman of the Board in December 2008.
He is responsible for the overall strategic planning of the
Group. Mr. Pan has over 22 years of experience in trading
and manufacturing of electronic products in China, Hong Kong
and the United States of America. Mr. Pan also has profound
experience in finance and property development. Meanwhile,
Mr. Pan is also the chairman and chief executive officer of
Goldin Properties Holdings Limited (“Goldin Properties”), a
company incorporated in Hong Kong with its shares listed

on the main board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Wong Hau Yan, Helvin, aged 36, was appointed an
executive Director in December 2008. He is also a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Wong is a general
counsel of the Company and responsible for overseeing the
Group’s legal and corporate matters. Mr. Wong holds the
degree of Bachelor in Law from The Manchester Metropolitan
University in the United Kingdom and was admitted as a
solicitor in Hong Kong and in England and Wales. Mr. Wong
is also an executive director and a general counsel of Goldin
Properties. Prior to joining Goldin Properties, Mr. Wong was
a special counsel of an international law firm specializing in
real estate mergers and acquisitions, corporate joint ventures

and public corporate compliance matters.

Mr. Zhou Dengchao, aged 36, was appointed an executive
Director in December 2008. He is responsible for the general
operation of the Group. Mr. Zhou graduated from Wuhan
University of Technology with a major in Accountancy. Mr.
Zhou has over 10 years of experience in financial management.
Before joining the Group, he has worked in the group of

Goldin Properties.
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Biographies of the Directors
EEBR

Ms. Hou Qin, aged 32, was appointed as a non-executive
Director in December 2008 and re-designated as an executive
Director in June 2009. She furthered her study in Jinan
University with a major in Financial Management following
her graduation from a professional college in Guangdong
province. Before joining the Group, Ms. Hou was responsible
for financial management for the group of Goldin Properties
from 1996 to 2008. She got extensive experience in financial
management and electronics industry in China.

Professor Huang Xiaojian, aged 48, was appointed a non-
executive Director in December 2008. He has over 22 years
of experience in research and development of electronic and
digital technologies. Professor Huang was a senior member
of an Electronic Association in China. He had worked in
different research organizations in China. Professor Huang
is an executive director of Goldin Properties. Before joining
the group of Goldin Properties, he was a professor of Beijing
University of Posts and Telecommunications.

Mr. Tso Hon Sai, Bosco, aged 45, was appointed an
independent non-executive Director in July 2003. He is
also a member of the audit and remuneration committees
of the Company. Mr. Tso is a solicitor practising in Hong
Kong since 1990. He is a consultant with Messrs. Tso Au
Yim & Yeung, Solicitors. He graduated from King’s College
London in the United Kingdom in 1987. Mr. Tso is also an
independent non-executive director of Rising Development
Holdings Limited and China Public Healthcare (Holding)
Limited, which are listed on the Stock Exchange.

Annual Report 2009/10

BELL =t-m R_ZETN\F+=
ABRZRERFATEFIN -_FTTAFR
ABERATES - FRERE —HER
EREXK  BREMASREVHE
2o MAREER - ERER-ANKEF
E_ZT)\FRABESRUESEE MK
BIE - RRMBEERTRETFERES

—

BERHER O+ \m R-ZEZENF+
“RABEZERFNTES - REHEE22

ETRBBRMAELR BHEST
HETEEZ2REE8 - RERBEATH
MAKBER ZHRSSRMWE BT
Ex-MASKRBESEAN  REEILR
WEREHE -

EEHEAE NtAR R-ZE=F+
RAEZERBUIFNTES - BHAEAR
REZZESRFMZESKE - B4
H—ANEFRE—EATBHRERM - &
REBEBEMITCBE - #R—h N\t
FEEPEFMAKIng s College » B
ENABRERERBERATRFPE AR
BE(ER)BERAGZEBIYIENTES
RERNTH AR R L2 AT -



SREB(EE)ERAQ A

Biographies of the Directors

EEERE

Ms. Hui Wai Man, Shirley, aged 43, was appointed an
independent non-executive Director in June 2006. She is also
the chairman of the audit committee of the Company and
the member of the remuneration committee of the Company.
Ms. Hui is a practising accountant in Hong Kong. She has
over 21 years of professional experience in public accounting
and corporate finance. She is a fellow of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants, the Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators and The Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries. Ms. Hui is also a non-executive
director and chairman of Eco-Tek Holdings Limited and an
independent non-executive director of Freeman Corporation
Limited and New Media Group Holdings Limited which are
listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Tang Yiu Wing, aged 43, was appointed an independent
non-executive Director in September 2006. He is also the
Chairman of the remuneration committee of the Company and
a member of the audit committee of the Company. Mr. Tang
is a practising solicitor in Hong Kong. He holds a Bachelor’s
Degree in Laws, a Postgraduate Certificate in Laws from
the University of Hong Kong and a Master’s Degree in Laws
from the City University of Hong Kong. He is a member of
the Law Society of Hong Kong and is admitted as a solicitor
of the Supreme Court of England and Wales and a barrister

and solicitor of the Supreme Court of Tasmania.
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Corporate Governance Report
PEEHREE

The board of directors (the “Board” or the “Directors”) of Goldin
Financial Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance. The Board periodically reviews the
corporate governance practices of the Company to ensure
that the practices continue to meet the requirements of the
code provisions of the Corporate Governance Practices (the
“CG Code”) set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

The Company has complied with all the code provisions
of the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules throughout the period from 1 January 2009 to 30
June 2010 (the “Period”), except for deviation from code
provision A.4.1 of the CG Code.

Under the CG Code provision A.4.1, non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.
None of the existing non-executive Directors are appointed
for a specific term but are subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years at the Company’s annual
general meeting in accordance with the provisions of the
bye-laws of the Company. The Board believes that such
practice will offer stability at the Board level while at the
same time, independence is safeguarded by the necessary
rotation, retirement and re-election procedures which involves
shareholders’ approval. As such, the Board considers that
such provisions are sufficient to meet the underlying objectives

of the relevant provisions of the CG Code.
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Corporate Governance Report
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The Board has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as
its own code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions. Having made specific enquiry of all the Directors,
all the Directors confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard of dealings set out in the Model Code
during the Period.

The Board currently comprises three executive directors,
two non-executive directors and three independent non-
executive directors, serving the important function of guiding
the management.

The Board members up to the date of this annual report
are as follows:

Non-executive Director and Chairman of the Board
Mr. Pan Sutong

Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Hau Yan, Helvin
Mr. Zhou Dengchao

Ms. Hou Qin

Non-executive Director
Professor Huang Xiaojian

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Tso Hon Sai, Bosco

Ms. Hui Wai Man, Shirley

Mr. Tang Yiu Wing
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TRERER®RSE

The details biographies of the directors are set out in
“BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS” section of this annual
report.

Fifteen Board meetings, four audit committee meetings and
one remuneration committee meeting were held during the
Period. The following table summarizes the attendance
of individual director and committee member during the

EEFZREABER AT RIEFTERE]

—#n e

RAHE KRABBRTTEREESS
& MREZZEEERNR —AFMEZE
Egd - PREBULENEZENEZEGKE
RAHR 2 BFER

Period:

Number of meetings attended/held

HE " BTEE2ZRE
Audit Remuneration

Board Committee Committee

EEg EREER FHEES
Executive Directors HITEE
Wong Hau Yan, Helvin =2EZR 12/15 n/a n/a
Zhou Dengchao & 4/15 n/a n/a
Hou Qin MNote 1) = ED 8/15 n/a n/a
Du Peng Mot 2) g (Hi2) 5/15 n/a n/a
Wang Zhixiong MNete 3) FREmE WEe 4/15 n/a n/a
Non-executive Directors FBITES
Pan Sutong (Chairman) EagE (£E) 12/15 n/a n/a
Huang Xiaojian EHEE 4/15 n/a n/a
Independent Non-executive BYFHITES

Directors

Tso Hon Sai, Bosco HEHE 6/15 4/4 1/1
Hui Wai Man, Shirley TR 7/15 4/4 1/1
Tang Yiu Wing S-S 6/15 4/4 1/1
Notes: MieE -
1. Ms. Hou Qin was re-designated from a non-executive Director 1. BREZLTHIFNTEEHTANTES ' A

to an executive Director with effect from 1 June 2009.

2. Mr. Du Peng resigned as an executive Director with effect

from 1 February 2010.

3. Mr. Wang Zhixiong resigned as an executive Director with

effect from 4 January 2010.

n/a  not applicable

Annual Report 2009/10

SETAENABREM -

2. HBEERENTEE B_T-TF_A

—HERERR -

3. IEHELBEATEE B_T-TF—

RmERAER -

n/a TEA



SREB(EE)ERAQ A

Corporate Governance Report
TEERBE

Regular Board meetings are held at least four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals. Additional Board meetings
will be convened, as and when required, to deal with ad hoc
issues. Any director who is not able to present physically
may participate at any Board meeting through electronic
means of communication, such as conference telephone
or other similar communication equipment, in accordance

with the Company’s bye-laws.

All Directors are provided with the opportunity to include
matters for discussion in the agenda if the need arise.
The agenda and the accompanying Board papers are sent
to all Directors at least 3 days before the date of every
regular Board meeting. Minutes of every Board meeting are
circulated to all Directors for their perusal and comment. All
the signed Board minutes are kept by the secretary of the
Company which are open for inspection by any Directors

at any reasonable time on reasonable notice.

The Board is accountable to the shareholders for leading the
Company in a responsible and effective manner. It formulates
overall directions and strategies of the Group, monitors its
financial performance and maintains effective oversight over
the management. Specific Board committees are set up
with delegated powers and clear terms of reference. Daily
operation and administration are led by all the executive
directors collectively. Matters reserved to the Board are
those affecting the Company’s overall strategic policies,
finances and shareholders. The Board is also responsible
for presenting a balanced, clear and understandable of the
financial and other information contained in the Company’s

accounts and have an effective internal control system.
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The independent non-executive directors are high caliber
professionals with diversified industry expertise to discharge
directors’ duties and safeguarding the interests of shareholders
and the Company as a whole. Each independent non-
executive directors has confirmed that he/she has satisfied
the criteria of independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and the directors has assessed and affirmed

their independence.

Mr. Pan Sutong is the Chairman of the Board and has
assumed the responsibility to manage the Board, ensuring
all directors receive adequate information in a timely manner
and properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings.

The Company has no such title as the chief executive officer
and therefore the daily operation and management of the
Company is monitored by the executive directors as well
as the senior management. The Board is of the view that
although there is no chief executive officer, the balance
of power and authority is ensured by the operation of the
Board, which comprises experienced individuals and meet
from time to time to discuss issues affecting operation of
the Company.

The remuneration committee of the Company was established
on 7 July 2005 with specific written terms of reference. During
the Period, a meeting was held to review the director’s fee,
the attendance of which was set out on page 32 of this
annual report. The remuneration committee of the Company
comprises three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Tang Yiu Wing (Chairman), Mr. Tso Hon Sai, Bosco and
Ms. Hui Wai Man, Shirley.
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The major roles and functions of the remuneration committee
of the Company are as follows:

1. tomake recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all remuneration of directors
and senior management and on the establishment of
a formal and transparent procedure for developing
policy on such remuneration.

2. to determine the specific remuneration packages of all
executive Directors and senior management and make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of non-executive Directors.

3. toreview and approve performance-based remuneration
by reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved
by the Board from time to time.

4. to review and approve the compensation payable
to executive Directors and senior management in
connection with any loss or termination of their office
or appointment.

5. to review and approve compensation arrangements
relating to dismissal or removal of Directors for
misconduct.

6. to ensure that no Director is involved in deciding his
own remuneration.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme on 28
January 2004, which serves as an incentive to attract, retain
and motivate talented eligible staff, including the directors.
Details of the share option scheme are set out in the
Report of the Directors on pages 17 to 21 and note 32 to
the financial statements, respectively. The structure of the
emolument payable to executive directors comprises basic
salary and pension. Details of the directors’ emoluments
are set out in note 9 to the financial statements.
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The Board is collectively responsible for the nomination
and selection of a Director. Proposed new Directors are
selected based on skills and experience that will enable
them to make positive contribution to the performance of
the Board. The Board also reviews its structure, size and
composition regularly to ensure that the Board has a balance
of skills and experience for providing effective leadership
to the Company.

For the Period ended 30 June 2010, the total fees paid/
payable in respect of services provided by Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) and Ernst & Young (“EY”), the Group’s
external auditors are set out below:

EXeHAARESF I RERTE - B
BZHEZRBERENCRIT GEEES
CrRAEREIAERMEE - EFET
IR E R - AR RAEK - URRE
ERAENEIRERLR  BRULES
AN/

REBE-_ZT-—ZFA=+HILHE
K;‘EIZQI\H?*E%(EW%%J s AEMRT g5t
(g DR KkestmEEMI %
KDREHRBEN BN 2 BREETH
mr

Services rendered Deloitte EY
FriR £t AR 7% =E Z K
HK$’000 HK$’'000

T T

Annual audit services FEEZR® 113 1,520
Taxation advisory services s RS - 116
Other advisory services H b 8 5 AR 7% 2,803 58
The audit committee of the Company was established KRR ZEBREZEER _ETNFNAC
on 27 September 2004 with specific written terms of ++HRRY HEAGRHTEARRESGE -

reference. The committee comprises three independent
non-executive directors, namely Ms. Hui Wai Man, Shirley
(Chairman), Mr. Tso Hon Sai, Bosco and Mr. Tang Yiu
Wing. None of the audit committee members are or have
ever been a partner of the existing audit firm engaged
by the Company.
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The audit committee of the Company had convened four
meetings in the Period, the attendance of which is set out
on page 32 of this annual report.

The major roles and functions of the audit committee of the
Company are as follows:

1. tomake recommendation to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of the external auditors; to
approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of
the external auditors; and any questions of resignation
or dismissal of that external auditors.

2.  toreview and monitor the external auditors’ independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process
in accordance with applicable standard.

3. to develop and implement policy on the engagement
of an external auditors to supply non-audit services.

4,  to review the interim and annual financial statements
before submission to the Board.

5. to discuss problems and reservations arising from the
interim review and final audit, and any matters the
auditors may wish to discuss.

6. to review the external auditors’ management letters
and management’s response.

7. to review the Group’s internal control system.

8. to consider the major findings of internal investigations
and management’s response.

During the Period, the audit committee had reviewed the
interim and second interim reports of the Company and
annual report of the Company; reviewed the recommendation
from the external auditors; approved external auditors to
perform non-audit services; reviewed the independence of
the external auditors; reviewed the terms of reference of audit
committee; and reviewed the internal control system.
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The directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation
of accounts of each financial period, which give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of
the results and cash flow for that period. In preparing the
accounts for the eighteen months ended 30 June 2010, the
directors have selected suitable accounting policies and
have applied them consistently, adopted appropriate Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, which also include
the Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Interpretations,
which are pertinent to its operations and relevant to the
financial statements, made judgements and estimates that
are prudent and reasonable, and have prepared the accounts
on the going concern basis.

The internal control system has been designed to safeguard
the assets of the Company, maintaining proper accounting
records, execution with appropriate authority and compliance

of the relevant laws and regulations.

The management has carried out periodic review of the
implementation and procedures of the internal control systems,
including areas covered accounting, business and legal
compliance. The scope of review was discussed with and
agreed by the audit committee of the Company. An internal
control report of the Company has been reported to the
Board. In addition to the periodic review, the management

will conduct any special review as required.

The Board is responsible for the system of internal control
and reviewing its effectiveness. For the Period under review,
the Board considered that the Company’s internal control
system is adequate and effective and the Company has
complied with the code provisions on internal control of
the CG Code.
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SREB(EE)ERA A

Corporate Governance Report
TEERBE

The Company appointed a chief financial officer, who has
the professional accounting qualification, to oversee the
financial management of the Group. The Board ensures that
the Company has sufficient resources and professional staff
for the accounting and financial reporting function.

The Company communicated with the shareholders by the
following modes of communication: (1) convening annual
general meeting and special general meetings; and (2)
providing information on the Company’s performance and
activities in the annual and interim reports. In addition to the
annual general meeting, the Company has held five special
general meetings in the Period. Separate resolutions are
proposed at general meetings on each separate issue and
voting of which are taken by poll pursuant to the Listing
Rules. All shareholders are encouraged to attend the general

meetings of the Company.

The Board is committed to providing business information
of the Company to the investors through timely publication
of interim and annual results and reports. The publications
of the Company, including financial reports, circulars and
announcements, are also available for download from the
website of the Company.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B % AT 3RS

-
Ell ERNST & YOUNG
iy
= Xk
To the shareholders of Goldin Financial Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of Goldin Financial
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries)
collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages
43 to 159, which comprise the consolidated and company
statements of financial position as at 30 June 2010, and
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the period from 1
January 2009 to 30 June 2010, and a summary of significant

accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
This responsibility includes designing, implementing and
maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies;
and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in

the circumstances.
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SREB(EE)ERAQ A

Independent Auditors’ Report
B BT3RS

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the HKICPA. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as
to whether the financial statements are free from material

misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and true and fair presentation of the financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit

opinion.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B 2 BE RS

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 30 June 2010 and of the Group’s profit and
cash flows for the period from 1 January 2009 to 30 June
2010 in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

18th Floor,
Two International Finance Centre,
8 Finance Street, Central

Hong Kong

9 September 2010
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SREB(EE)ERAQ A

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

REEEWBA®REK

Period from 1 January 2009 to 30 June 2010

—ETNF-H-BEZ

—ZTERA=TEHHA

Period from
1 January 2009 Year ended
to 30 June 31 December
2010 2008
—ETAF BHE
—HA—HZE —EENF
—E-TF +=-—A=+—8H
NA=ZTHHE HEE
No’ges HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FAT FET
CONTINUING OPERATIONS @& %%
Revenue EEERE 6 249,253 14,487
Cost of sales 5 & A AR (16,413) (4,925)
Gross profit EF 232,840 9,562
Other income and gains H U A R W ES 6 734 348
Selling and distribution SHE Mo H

expenses (4,004) (44)
Administrative expenses ITBR (79,039) (20,712)
Gain on disposal of HEHB AR 2 W

subsidiaries 1,189 -
Finance costs Ve R 8 (629) (2)
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX %%%%%i%zr%mﬁﬁ

FROM CONTINUING wmHL(EE)

OPERATIONS 7 151,091 (10,848)
Income tax expense FriS i F > 11 (28,531) (61)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE SESEREB AR

PERIOD/YEAR FROM FERR(BE)

CONTINUING

OPERATIONS 122,560 (10,899)
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS C & IF &= 5%

Profit/(loss) for the period/year E%%JJ:”“%%WZHHW/

from discontinued operations &M, (EE) 13 4,453 (136,611)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE W EERRN(FER)

PERIOD/YEAR 127,013 (147,510)

—B2B2h/ -BEFEH
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Goldin Financial Holdings Limited

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
RETHEHWBWARE

Period from 1 January 2009 to 30 June 2010
—ERNE-A—RAE-_Z-—ZENA=1+BEHH

Period from
1 January 2009 Year ended
to 30 June 31 December
2010 2008
—EETNF ESE
—A—B% —EBENE
—E—2F +=A=+—8
SNAZ=+HHEE WEFE
Notes HK$'000 HK$’000
B 7E FAET T T
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE Hb2mW A (EE)
INCOME/(LOSS)
Exchange differences on BREBINEBIEEZ
translation of foreign ME 5 =&
operations 4,631 -
Available-for-sale investment — At H &R E — A F(EE
change in fair value (57,186) -
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE BB BN, EE
LOSS FOR THE Ha2mEEE
PERIOD/YEAR, NET OF TAX (52,555) =
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE HR EEEEmBAS
INCOME/(LOSS) FOR (E518) 4858
THE PERIOD/YEAR 74,458 (147,510)
EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER RABEE AELTR
SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO BF, (B#E)
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 15 (Restated)(E7%])

Basic
— For profit/(loss) for the
period/year

BN
—HNFERF(EE)
HK7.66 cents
&L

(HK$3.67%7T)

—REREEB 28R,
(B#8)

— For profit/(loss) from
continuing operations HK7.39 cents

Al

(HK$0.27%7T)

Diluted
— For profit/(loss) for the
period/year

#E
—HR S EE R (EE)
HK7.63 cents
eIl

(HK$3.677% 7T)

—REREEB 2 EM,/
(&18)

— For profit/(loss) from
continuing operations HK7.36 cents

7l

(HK$0.27%7T)

Details of the dividend proposed for the period are disclosed
in note 14 to the financial statements.

Annual Report 2009/10
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SREB(EE)ERAQ A

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B S AR O &

30 June 2010
—E-TFXA=1+H

30 June 31 December
2010 2008
—E—EF —EENF
~A=+H +=—RA=+—8H
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 7E FAET FHBTT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Plant and equipment W23 K 28 1 16 18,778 727
Investment properties LAY 17 - 18,680
Earnest money WED 18 - 56,689
Available-for-sale investment — A[{tHE&RE 20 175,623 =
Total non-current assets ERBEELE 194,401 76,096
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Inventories FE 123 137
Trade receivables FEWE ZBR X 21 1,566,109 87
Prepayments, deposits and AR -« me RHEM
other receivables JE U BR 31 22 298,598 1,494
Financial assets at fair value  RIERRIRAFERIE Y
through profit or loss TREE 23 16,027 =
Cash and bank balances He RIR1THET 24 1,537,870 20,757
Total current assets MENE ERE 3,418,727 22,475
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade payables FETE SR 25 233,640 499
Accruals, other payables, JEStBE - HttENK
other deposits and HEize RBWHIA
receipts in advance 26 17,079 5,516
Provision for an BEAGHNERE
onerous contract 27 2,555 2,555
Amounts due to minority FETH B A R D EAR R 2 518
shareholders of a subsidiary 28 - 1,160
Other borrowing HEMEE 29 85,371 =
Tax payable FE A1 28,091 2,302
Total current liabilities mEVB(ELRE 366,736 12,032

—z2h -2 45
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Goldin Financial Holdings Limited

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MBRRERE

30 June 2010
—T-TFA=+H

30 June 31 December
2010 2008
—E—FF —EENF
~NA=1+H +=-—A=+—H
Notes HK$’'000 HK$’000
B Rt FET FHE T
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFEE 3,051,991 10,443
TOTAL ASSETS LESS EEABERADER
CURRENT LIABILITIES 3,246,392 86,539
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY FRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities REHIAEEE 30 548 738
Net assets BEFE 3,245,844 85,801
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to RAEIEB AEGER
owners of the Company
Issued capital BEITRA 31 332,055 73,450
Reserves & 33(a) 2,913,789 12,351
Total equity AR 3,245,844 85,801
Director E5= Director #5=
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SREB(EE)ERAQ A

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GARBEBHE

Period from 1 January 2009 to 30 June 2010
—EENF-—A—BE-_ZT-—TFXA=+BHMHE

Attributable to owners of the Company

YNGE 2PN
Available-
for-sale Retained
Share Exchange Share  investment profits/
Issued premium  Contributed  translation option  revaluation (accumulated
capital account surplus reserve reserve reserve losses) Total
A&
REH) &t AN NERE BRE REER REBEH/
e B B E& 4] FE (2HEE) o)
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
iR T TR ThT T ThL THI ThT ThT
At 1 January 2008 RZFEN\E-A-R 12,242 86,370 202,809 - - - (126,898) 174,528
Total comprehensive EEREEELT
loss for the year - - - - - - (147,510)  (147,510)
Issue of shares ¥k 31(a) 61,208 - - - - - - 61,208
Share issue expenses R 31(a) = (2,420) - - = = - (2,420)
At 31 December 2008 RZFFN\E+-A=1-H 73,450 83,950* 202,809 - - - (274,408 85,801
At 1 January 2009 RZEENE-A-R 73,450 83,950 202,809 - - - (274408 85,801
Total comprehensive Bhz2E
income/(loss) for the period WA/ (BR)EE - - - 4,631 - (BT18e) 127,013 74,458
Issue of shares kb 31(b) 2,440 854 - - - - - 3,204
Reduction in share capital BAHIR 31(c) (66,404) - 66,404 - - - - -
Transfer &% 31(c) - - (269,213) - - - 269,013 -
Rights issues iR 31(d) 322,582 2,787,054 - - - - - 3,109,586
Share issue expenses BT 31(d) - (34737 - - - - - (B473)
Equity-settled share option IERLEE 7 BRETHE
arrangements 32 - - - - 7,201 - - 7,201
Issue of shares upon exercise of 1T BREBETR
share options 37 268 - - (64) - - 241
Lapsed share options KnsRE - - - - (397) - 397 -
At 30 June 2010 RZE-Z2E7A=1H 332,005 2,837,389 - 4,631* 6,740"  (57,186) 122,215 3,245,844
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of — * hNERERERGEEMBRARRP ZEREHE
HK$2,913,789,000 (31 December 2008: HK$12,351,000) in the 2,918,789,0008 T (ZEENF+-A=+—1 :
consolidated statement of financial position. 12,351,000/ 7T) °

—z2h —sxaes 47
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Goldin Financial Holdings Limited

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

%Aiﬁﬁulbéé‘%

Period from 1 January 2009 to 30 June 2010

—TTNF-A—HE=

E-ZFXNA=+HHHE

Period from
1 January 2009 Year ended
to 30 June 31 December
2010 2008
—ETNF H=E
—fB—HB=Z :22}\%
—T-TF +TZA=+—
NA=TBHM M:EFE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’ 000
B 5 FHET FHE T
CASH FLOWS FROM REREXB2RERE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit/(loss) before tax: B RLRA(E5E):
From continuing operations R EFFELEETE 151,091 (10,848)
From discontinued operations 2R B #% |F £ & ¥ 7% 5,001 (135,899)
Adjustments for: BT IEEL FHE
Interest income FEBA 6,13 (478) (163)
Finance costs B & A 8 629 2
Depreciation e 16 1,516 4,888
Loss on disposal of items of  HEMRENREEE 2 FHE
plant and equipment 7 1 41
Gain on disposal of HEMB AR Z W
subsidiaries 34 (2,290) -
Impairment loss on items of a2 R HIE B REEE
plant and equipment 16 - 58,528
Impairment loss on deposits & & EE1E - 6
Change in fair value of "EMEZ AT EES
investment properties 17 (3,320) 950
Fair value gains on listed RERE s FTEMIAZ
financial Instruments NEER
through profit or loss 6 - (74)
Equity-settled share option NS EE 2 BRES T
expenses 7 7,201 -
Consideration for termination & IFWE—HEEZRE
of acquisition of an entity 18 2,000 -
161,351 (82,569)
Decrease/(increase) in financial RNBER AT ERIE 2
assets at fair value through SRMEERL S (EN)
profit or loss (16,027) 74
Decrease in inventories FERD 14 959
Increase in trade receivables  FEUR & 5 B8R ZX3E N (1,561,067) (238)
Decrease/(increase) in EMFEEEMEERD
prepayments and other (3G hn)
deposits (298,663) 1,125
Increase/(decrease) in trade FERZ SR I,
payables -2 230,868 (6,622)
Increase in accruals, other EEtEE  Htike Rk
deposits and receipts in Ta U FRIE I AN
advance 13,346 1,441
Increase in available-for-sale A fit H &% &L hn
investment (147,568) -
Cash used in operations %“Aﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬁi (1,617,746) (85,830)
Income tax paid B ATER (81) (84)
Net cash flows used in KEEEFIAR SR EF8
operating activities (1,617,827) (85,914)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERERER

Period from 1 January 2009 to 30 June 2010
—ERNE-A—RAE-_Z-ZENA=1BEHH

SREB(EE)ERAQ A

Period from
1 January 2009 Year ended
to 30 June 31 December
2010 2008
—ZEAE CES
—H—RA=® ZEENF
—E-TF +=-—A=+—H
NA=Z+THHE IEFE
HK$’'000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM REREEZHZHERE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of items of EEMSSNEREIEE
plant and equipment 16 (19,674) (204)
Proceeds from disposal of HEREE &R EIE B TS UE
items of plant and equipment - 224
Earnest money paid BERHES - (56,689)
Refund of earnest money RIEHES 56,689 —
Consideration for termination A& IFWEE—HEEZRE
of acquisition of an entity (2,000) -
Interest received 2 F & 478 163
Disposal of subsidiaries o & T8 A A 34 19,600 59,932
Net cash flows from REBREEH R EREFE
investing activities 55,093 3,426
CASH FLOWS FROM REMEZTHRETRE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from other borrowing H & E Fr15 518 21,100 =
Repayment of other borrowing (B& H (& E (19,686) -
Proceeds from issue of shares 177 FT153 3 1E 31 3,113,121 61,208
Share issue expenses 1D BT M 31 (34,737) (2,420)
Interest paid BAF A - 2)
Net cash flows from RERMEEH R EREFE
financing activities 3,079,798 58,786
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) #®B&RkBRE&ZSEEM
IN CASH AND OR ) =5
CASH EQUIVALENTS 1,517,064 (23,702)
Cash and cash equivalents at Hi#]/ FH & MIR& EE
beginning of period/year 20,757 44,459
Effect of foreign exchange EXREHFEE
rate changes, net 49 -
CASH AND CASH HR /" FRESRESEE
EQUIVALENTS AT END OF
PERIOD/YEAR 1,637,870 20,757
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF BeRBRESZELEFIN
CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances Re RIRTTHET 1,537,870 20,757

—B2B2h/ -BEFEH
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Goldin Financial Holdings Limited

Statement of Financial Position

B %5 R O ¥R AR

30 June 2010
—ET-TFXA=1H

30 June 31 December
2010 2008
—E—TF —ETNF
~A=+8H +=—HA=+—8H
Notes HK$’000 HK$ 000
B 5 FAT T T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Plant and equipment Wes & 16 25 -
Interests in subsidiaries R B AR Z #Eas 19 2,079,145 22,164
Earnest money HE S 18 - 56,689
Total non-current assets FRBEERE 2,079,170 78,853
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Prepayments, deposits and AR - B &
other receivables H b e W BR 7k 22 4,140 356
Cash and bank balances Be MBITHER 24 1,163,252 39
Total current assets MBEERE 1,167,392 395
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Accruals and receipts in EETBERBWSRIE
advance 26 2,005 2,745
NET CURRENT REBEE(AEB)FE
ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) 1,165,387 (2,350)
Net assets BEFE 3,244,557 76,503
EQUITY =
Issued capital B2 EITRRA 31 332,055 73,450
Reserves & 33(b) 2,912,502 3,053
Total equity AR 3,244,557 76,503

Director %
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SREB(EE)ERAQ A

Notes to Financial Statements

B 75 ¥ 3= MY 5

30 June 2010
—E-TFXA=1+H

Goldin Financial Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a
limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The
principal place of business of the Company is located
at 23/F, Two International Finance Centre, 8 Finance
Street, Central, Hong Kong.

The Company is a subsidiary of Goldin Global Holdings
Limited which is incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands. In the opinion of the directors, the Company’s
ultimate holding company is Goldin Real Estate Financial
Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands.

The principal activity of the company is investment
holding. The principal activities of the subsidiaries
consisted of the provision of factoring service, financial
investment and operation of a restaurant. During the
period from 1 January 2009 to 30 June 2010, the Group
discontinued the operations of property investment.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed by the
Shareholders at the special general meeting of the
Company held on 13 May 2009 and the approval by the
Registrar of Companies in Bermuda, the name of the
Company has been changed from Fortuna International
Holdings Limited to Goldin Financial Holdings Limited
and the adoption of the new Chinese name “= R & &l
(£ B)ABR A [ for identification purposes.

The Company’s financial year end date was changed
from 31 December to 30 June to facilitate better
planning and operational process of the newly launched
factoring business.

These financial statements cover a period of eighteen
months from 1 January 2009 to 30 June 2010.
Accordingly, the comparative amounts presented
for the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity, the consolidated statement of cash flows and
the related notes, which were prepared for the year
ended 31 December 2008, are not for a comparable
time period.

SREM(EE)BRARNTARA])E—
MR ARETMRILZBREERF » &K
RAEBELEXMHB AT ET RS BESNR
B & RO — Bi23%2 o

ARRBBRRREFERER DB (REBE
LEBEAMRILIZHMBAR - EFRR
ARBZBREER AR RDREBIBEE
BRERAR(—RERREEZRSEMKL
pA/NCIDIC

ARBZEBXRBR/WEER - HE AR
ZEBREXBEERARERS =&
RERBEBEK -R-_ZEThhF—H—H
E_E-ZEFRA=THHRE xEEZ
MEREEBCRIERE -

BERER_ZETENFRAAT=HET
RATRRFRARE® EFAA 2 RS
REARERAFMEZIE  ARAl#
7 2 Al Fortuna International Holdings
Limited ] & 8 &[ Goldin Financial Holdings
Limited ] - WEHKAFH P X EZB[ SRR
(EE)BRAA JLAHER

ARRZMRFEHERCEAT A=+
—BERRB/ANA=ZTH  AREHHELH
REXBHORE L ZERFF

ZEVBRRREDRAE _TTNF—
A—RAE-_Z-TFRA=tHZ+/\@E
ARt 23RBE_ZEZTNF+_A
ST-HLEFEZHEAEEBARE &
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AZEBRESBAE TERLLEHR -
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Goldin Financial Holdings Limited

Notes to Financial Statements

B %5 8 R B &

30 June 2010
—Z—FTFEXA=1+H

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have
been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for investment properties, derivative financial
instruments and equity investments, which have been
measured at fair value. These financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the period
from 1 January 2009 to 30 June 2010. The results of
subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition,
being the date on which the Group obtains control,
and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases. All income and expenses and
unrealised gains and losses resulting from intercompany
transactions and intercompany balances within the

Group are eliminated on consolidation in full.
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The Group has adopted the following new and revised

HKFRSs for the first time for the current period’s

financial statements.

HKFRS 1
and HKAS 27
Amendments

HKFRS 2
Amendments

HKFRS 7
Amendments

HKFRS 8

HKAS 1 (Revised)

HKAS 18
Amendment*

HKAS 23
(Revised)
HKAS 32
and HKAS 1
Amendments

Amendments to HKFRS 1
First-time Adoption of HKFRSs
and HKAS 27 Consolidated
and Separate Financial Statements
— Cost of an Investment in a
Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled
Entity or Associate

Amendments to HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment
- Vesting Conditions and
Cancellations

Amendments to HKFRS 7
Financial Instruments:
Disclosures — Improving
Disclosures about
Financial Instruments

Operating Segments

Presentation of Financial
Statements

Amendments to Appendix to
HKAS 18 Revenue
— Determining whether an
entity is acting as a
principal or as an agent

Borrowing Costs

Amendments to HKAS 32
Financial Instruments:
Presentation and HKAS 1
Presentation of Financial
Statements — Puttable Financial
Instruments and Obligations
Arising on Liquidation
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HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 Amendment to HK(IFRIC)-Int 9
and HKAS 39 Reassessment of
Amendments Embedded Derivatives

and HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement —
Embedded Derivatives

HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 Customer Loyalty
Programmes

HK(IFRIC)-Int 15 Agreements for the
Construction of Real
Estate

HK(IFRIC)-Int 16 Hedges of a Net Investment

in a Foreign Operation

HK(IFRIC)-Int 18 Transfers of Assets from
Customers (adopted from
1 July 2009)
Improvements Amendments to a number
to HKFRSs of HKFRSs
(October 2008)**

Included in Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 (as issued in
May 2009)

> The Group adopted all the improvements to HKFRSs issued in
October 2008 except for the amendments to HKFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations —
Plan to Sell the Controlling Interest in a Subsidiary which
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
July 2009.
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Other than as further explained below regarding the
impact of HKAS 1 (Revised), HKFRS 2, HKFRS 7 and
HKFRS 8, the adoption of these new and revised

HKFRSs has had no significant financial effect on these

financial statements and there have been no significant

changes to the accounting policies applied in these

financial statements.

The principal effects of adopting these new interpretations

and amendments to HKFRSs are as follows:

(a)

HKAS 1 (REVISED) PRESENTATION OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HKAS 1 (Revised) introduces changes in the
presentation and disclosures of financial statements.
The revised standard separates owner and non-
owner changes in equity. The statement of changes
in equity includes only details of transactions with
owners, with all non-owner changes in equity
presented as a single line. In addition, this standard
introduces the statement of comprehensive income,
with all items of income and expense recognised
in profit or loss, together with all other items
of recognised income and expense recognised
directly in equity, either in one single statement, or
in two linked statements. The Group has elected

to present one statement.
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(b)

(c)

AMENDMENTS TO HKFRS 2 SHARE-BASED
PAYMENT - VESTING CONDITIONS AND
CANCELLATIONS

The HKFRS 2 Amendments clarify that
vesting conditions are service conditions
and performance conditions only. Any other
conditions are non-vesting conditions. Where an
award does not vest as a result of a failure to
meet a non-vesting condition that is within the
control of either the entity or the counterparty,
this is accounted for as a cancellation. As
the Group has not entered into share-based
payment schemes with non-vesting conditions
attached, the amendments have had no impact
on the financial position or result of operations
of the Group.

AMENDMENTS TO HKFRS 7 FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS: DISCLOSURES -
IMPROVING DISCLOSURES ABOUT
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The HKFRS 7 require additional disclosures
about fair value measurement and liquidity
risk. Fair value measurements related to items
recorded at fair value are to be disclosed
by sources of inputs using a three-level fair
value hierarchy, by class, for all financial
instruments recognised at fair value. In addition,
a reconciliation between the beginning and
ending balance is now required for level 3 fair
value measurements, as well as significant
transfers between levels in the fair value
hierarchy. The amendments also clarify the
requirements for liquidity risk disclosures with
respect to derivative transactions and assets
used for liquidity management. The fair value
measurement disclosures are presented in
note 40 to the financial statements while the
revised liquidity risk disclosures are presented
in note 41 to the financial statements.
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(d)

HKFRS 8 OPERATING SEGMENTS

HKFRS 8, which replaces HKAS 14 Segment
Reporting, specifies how an entity should report
information about its operating segments, based
on information about the components of the entity
that is available to the chief operating decision
maker for the purposes of allocating resources to
the segments and assessing their performance. The
standard also requires the disclosure of information
about the products and services provided by the
segments, the geographical areas in which the
Group operates, and revenue from the Group’s
major customers. The Group concluded that the
operating segments determined in accordance
with HKFRS 8 are the same as the business
segments previously identified under HKAS 14.
These revised disclosures, including the related
revised comparative information, are shown in

note 5 to the financial statements.

(d)
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The Group has not applied the following new and

revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not

yet effective, in these financial statements.

HKFRS 1
(Revised)

HKFRS 1

Amendments

HKFRS 1

Amendment

HKFRS 2
Amendments

HKFRS 3
(Revised)

HKFRS 8

Amendment

Annual Report 2009/10

First-time Adoption of Hong

Kong Financial Reporting
Standards'

Amendments to HKFRS 1
First-time Adoption of Hong
Kong Financial Reporting
Standards — Additional
Exemptions for First-time
Adopters?

Amendment to HKFRS 1
— First-time Adoption of Hong
Kong Financial Reporting
Standards — Limited Exemption
from Comparative HKFRS 7
Disclosures for First-time
Adopters*

Amendments to HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment — Group

Cash-settled Share-based
Payment Transactions?
Business Combinations'’

Amendment to HKFRS 8
Operating Segments —
Disclosure of information
about segment assets?
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HKFRS 9

HKAS 24
(Revised)

HKAS 27
(Revised)

HKAS 32
Amendment

HKAS 39
Amendment

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14
Amendments

HK(IFRIC)-Int 17

HK(IFRIC)-Int 19

Amendments to
HKFRS 5
included
Improvements
to HKFRSs issued
in October 2008

| Statements

Financial Instruments®

Related Party Disclosures®

Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements'
Amendment to HKAS 32
Financial Instruments:
Presentation — Classification
of Rights Issues®
Amendment to HKAS 39
Financial Instruments:
Recognition and
Measurement — Eligible
Hedged ltems'
Amendments to
HK(IFRIC)-Int 14
Prepayments of
a Minimum Funding
Requirement®
Distributions of Non-cash
Assets to Owners'

Extinguishing Financial
Liabilities with Equity
Instruments*

Amendments to HKFRS 5
Non-current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued
Operations — Plan to sell
the controlling interest

in a subsidiary?
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HK' Interpretation Leases — Determination of
4 (Revised in the Length of Lease Term
December 2009) in respect of Hong Kong

Land Leases?

Apart from the above, the HKICPA has issued
Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 and Improvements
to HKFRSs 2010 which sets out amendments and
transition requirements for amendments to a number
of HKFRSs.

For Improvements to HKFRSs 2009, the amendments to
HKFRS 2, HKAS 38, HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 and HK(IFRIC)-Int
16 are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 July 2009 while the amendments to HKFRS 5, HKFRS
8, HKAS 1, HKAS 7, HKAS 17, HKAS 36 and HKAS 39
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2010 although there are separate transitional

provisions for each standard or interpretation.

For Improvements to HKFRSs 2010, the amendments to
HKFRS 3 and transition requirements for amendments
arising as a result of HKAS 27 are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010 while the
amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 7, HKAS 1, HKAS
34 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2011 although there
are separate transitional provisions for each standard

or interpretation.
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i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July

! RZZEZNFELA BRI ZERABZFEH

2009 i A

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2 REZE—ZTF—A— A2k BERZFES
2010 i A

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 February E RZE—ZEF-_A— B zE&RABRZFELD
2010 i A

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July g REZE—ZTFLA— A ZEBERZFES
2010 i A

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2 REZF——F—A— B 2kBERZFES
2011 i 2

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January € REZFE—=F—A— B2k BARZFES
2013 i 2

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of the impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon
initial application. So far, the Group considers that
these new and revised HKFRSs are unlikely to have a
significant impact on the Group’s results of operations
and financial position.

SUBSIDIARIES

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating
policies the Company controls, directly or indirectly,
so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
profits or loss to the extent of dividends received and
receivable. The Company’s interests in subsidiaries are
stated at cost less any impairment losses.
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IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS
Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, financial assets and investment properties),
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or
cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value
less costs to sell, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets
or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or
loss in the period in which it arises.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist
or may have decreased. If such an indication exists,
the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of
such an impairment loss is credited to profit and loss
in the period in which it arises.
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RELATED PARTIES
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

the party, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled by, or is
under common control with, the Group; (ii) has
an interest in the Group that gives it significant
influence over the Group; or (iii) has joint control
over the Group;

the party is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or its parent;

the party is a close member of the family of any
individual referred to in (a) or (b);

the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by or for
which significant voting power in such entity
resides with, directly or indirectly, any individual
referred to in (b) or (c); or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of the employees of the Group, or of
any entity that is a related party of the Group.
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PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND DEPRECIATION

Plant and equipment, other than crockery, utensils and
linens, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use.
Expenditure incurred after items of plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred. In situations where
the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for
a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount
of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts
of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual
assets with specific useful lives and depreciation.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of plant and equipment
to its residual value over the following estimated useful
life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose
are as follows:

Leasehold improvements Over the remaining
lease terms or

5 years, whichever

is shorter
Machinery and equipment 20% to 33%
Furniture and fixtures 20% to 25%
Motor vehicles 20%
Computer equipment 33%
Cruise liner 5%
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PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND DEPRECIATION
(Continued)

Initial expenditure incurred for crockery, utensils and
linens is capitalised and no depreciation is provided
thereon. The cost of subsequent replacement for
these items is recognised in profit or loss as and when
incurred.

Where parts of an item of plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part
is depreciated separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
least at each financial period/year end.

An item of plant and equipment and any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from
its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the
asset is derecognised is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Investment properties are land and buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than
for use in the supply of services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business.
These include land and buildings held for a currently
undetermined future use. Such properties are measured
initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are stated
at fair value, which reflects market conditions as at
the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values
of investment properties are included in the profit or
loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in profit or loss in
the year/period of the retirement or disposal.

LEASES

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is
the lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating
leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to
profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable
under the operating leases are charged to profit or loss
on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases
are initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised

on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
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INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of HKAS 39 are
classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and receivables, and available-
for-sale financial assets, as appropriate. The Group
determines the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition. When financial assets are recognised
initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the
case of investments not at fair value through profit or

loss, directly attributable transaction costs.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation

or convention in the marketplace.

The Group’s financial assets include cash and bank
balances, trade receivables, restricted and other deposits,
other receivables, quoted and unquoted financial
instruments, and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:
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INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
(Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include financial assets held for trading. Financial
assets are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term.
This category includes derivative financial instruments
entered into by the Group that are not designated as
hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined
by HKAS 39. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless
they are designated as effective hedging instruments.
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit
or loss. These net fair value changes do not include
any dividends on these financial assets, which are
recognised in accordance with the policy set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.

The Group evaluates its financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (held for trading) to assess
whether the intent to sell them in the near term is
still appropriate. When the Group is unable to trade
these financial assets due to inactive markets and
management’s intent to sell them in the foreseeable
future significantly changes, the Group may elect to
reclassify these financial assets in rare circumstances.
The reclassification from financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss to loans and receivables, available-
for-sale financial assets or held-to-maturity investments
depends on the nature of the assets.
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INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
(Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. After initial measurement,
such assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated
taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in profit or loss.
The loss arising from impairment is recognised in profit

or loss in other operating expenses.

Available-for-sale financial investments
Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in listed equity and debt securities.
Equity investments classified as available-for-sale are
those which are neither classified as held for trading
nor designated at fair value through profit or loss. Debt
securities in this category are those which are intended
to be held for an indefinite period of time and which
may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or in
response to changes in the market conditions.
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INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
(Continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (Continued)
After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair value,
with unrealised gains or losses recognised as other
comprehensive income in the available-for-sale investment
valuation reserve until the investment is derecognised,
at which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss, or until the investment is determined to
be impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss and removed from the
available-for-sale investment valuation reserve. Interest
and dividends earned are reported as interest income
and dividend income, respectively and are recognised
in profit or loss as other income in accordance with the

policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

The Group evaluates its available-for-sale financial
assets whether the ability and intention to sell them in
the near term are still appropriate. When the Group is
unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive
markets and management’s intent to do so significantly
changes in the foreseeable future, the Group may elect
to reclassify these financial assets in rare circumstances.
Reclassification to loans and receivables is permitted
when the financial assets meet the definition of loans
and receivables and the Group has the intent and ability
to hold these assets for the foreseeable future or to
maturity. The reclassification to the held-to-maturity
category is permitted only when the entity has the
ability and intent to hold until the maturity date of the
financial asset.
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INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
(Continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (Continued)
For a financial asset reclassified out of the available-for-
sale category, any previous gain or loss on that asset
that has been recognised in equity is amortised to profit
or loss over the remaining life of the investment using
the effective interest rate. Any difference between the
new amortised cost and the expected cash flows is
also amortised over the remaining life of the asset using
the effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently
determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded

in equity is reclassified to profit or loss.

DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognised when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset

have expired;

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset, or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.
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DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)
When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, and has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset
is recognised to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement in the asset. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at
the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset
and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Group could be required to repay.

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is any objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A
financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed
to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence
of impairment as a result of one or more events that
has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset
(an incurred “loss event”) and that loss event has
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or the group of financial assets that
can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may
include indications that a debtor or a group of debtors
is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation and observable data indicating
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
Group first assesses individually whether objective
evidence of impairment exists for financial assets that
are individually significant, or collectively for financial
assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment
exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics
and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets
that are individually assessed for impairment and
for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be,
recognised are not included in a collective assessment
of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred). The present value of estimated future cash
flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition). If a loan has a variable
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any

impairment loss is the current effective interest rate.
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IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost
(Continued)

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through
the use of an allowance account and the amount of
the loss is recognised in profit or loss. Interest income
continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying
amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used
to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables
together with any associated allowance are written
off when the Group first assesses there is no realistic
prospect of future recovery.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is increased
or reduced by adjusting the allowance amount. If
a future write-off is later recovered, the recovery is
credited to profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that an investment or a

group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair
value, less any impairment loss previously recognised
in profit or loss is removed from other comprehensive
income and recognised in profit and loss.
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IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments
(Continued)

In the case of equity investments classified as available-
for-sale, objective evidence would include a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment
below its cost. The determination of what is “significant”
or “prolonged” requires judgement. “Significant” is
evaluated against the original cost of the investment
and “prolonged” against the period in which the fair
value has been below its original cost. Where there is
evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured
as the difference between the acquisition cost and the
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that
investment previously recognised in profit or loss —
is removed from other comprehensive income and
recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses on
equity instruments classified as available-for-sale are
not reversed through profit or loss. Increases in their
fair value after impairment are recognised directly in

other comprehensive income.

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Loans and borrowings

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of HKAS 39
are classified as loans and borrowings. The Group
determines the classification of its financial liabilities

at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value less directly attributable transaction costs. The
Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables,
amounts due to minority shareholders of a subsidiary

and other borrowing.
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FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (Continued)

Loans and borrowings (Continued)

Subsequent measurement

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest
rate method amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
finance costs in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or
expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of
a new liability, and the difference between the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

OFFSETTING OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if, and only if, there is currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded
in active markets is determined by reference to quoted
market prices or dealer price quotations (bid price
for long positions and ask price for short positions),
without any deduction for transaction costs. For
financial instruments where there is no active market,
the fair value is determined using appropriate valuation
techniques. Such techniques include using recent arm'’s
length market transactions; reference to the current
market value of another instrument which is substantially
the same; a discounted cash flow analysis; or option

pricing model.

INVENTORIES

Inventories represent food and beverages for the
restaurant operation and are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined
on weighted-average method. Net realisable value
is based on estimated selling prices less any further

costs expected to be incurred to disposal.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly
liguid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position,
cash and bank balances comprise cash on hand and
at banks, which are not restricted as to use.

EMIAZATE
EERMSEEEZERTAZAFELDS
Rz MEXZSBREEE(HRARE
ANE R REE)  AEMREMRHK
Ko e TAZMBENER - AEK
B E 2 EDETLAFE  HEBRE
ERABPZRAFHERS  BEEMAHK
MRTAZME: BRESRESN : X
HIEE BB -

7B
FEREEEEBORY KK - WK
RERAERFEREBZEEESER -
BABERMEFTH T EEE P25 FE
A ERHET HEEBREEERE LS
EEZRARMETE °

RekBAeEE
mESAREREXRMAZHASERESE
B BRFERSMEHFR  UKLAHE
RABKCHNSHERS  BEZHARK
BREEBBAR—RAM={EAREERE
BZRTBEXLRBRASER S EE &
DZEHRREMERE

RUBRRAREMS  RERRTEFE
EREINZRH 2 FHERE RRITRE °

—2B2h/ -BEFEH



N

78

Goldin Financial Holdings Limited

Notes to Financial Statements

B %5 8 R Y &

30 June 2010
—Z—FTFEXA=1+H

PROVISIONS

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a
past event and it is probable that a future outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the

amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in finance costs

in profit or loss.

INCOME TAX

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised, either in other comprehensive income

or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and
prior periods are measured at the amount expected to
be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations
and practices prevailing in the countries in which the
Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting

purposes.
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INCOME TAX (Continued)
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable

temporary differences, except:

o where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax

losses can be utilised, except:

o where the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and
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INCOME TAX (Continued)

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each
reporting period and are recognised to the extent that
it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred
taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same

tax authority.
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REVENUE RECOGNITION
Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the

economic benefits will flow to the Group and when

revenue can be measured reliably, on the following

bases:

(a)

handling fee income from factoring service, when
the relevant services have been rendered;

interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument
or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net

carrying amount of the financial asset;

realised fair value gains or losses on future contracts
trading on a trade date basis, and unrealised fair
value gains or losses on change in fair value at
the end of reporting period;

sales of food and beverages, when the food and
beverages have been delivered and passed to

customers;

rental income, in the period which the properties
are let and on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms;

room, food and beverage sales and other ancillary
services on the cruise liner; when the relevant

services have been rendered;

catering service fee income, when the relevant

services have been rendered; and
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REVENUE RECOGNITION (Continued)

(h)  rental income from gaming hall in the cruise liner
on a percentage of net profit generated by the
lessee, when the net profit is earned.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

The Company operates a share option scheme for
the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants who contribute to the success of
the Group’s operations. Employees (including directors)
of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-
based payment transactions, whereby employees
render services as consideration for equity instruments
(“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with eligible
participants is measured by reference to the fair value
at the date at which they are granted. The fair value
is determined by an external valuer using a binomial
model.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity,
over the period in which the performance and/or
service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end
of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects
the extent to which the vesting period has expired and
the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or
credit to profit or loss for a period represents the
movement in the cumulative expense recognised as
at the beginning and end of that period.
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

No expense is recognised for awards that do not
ultimately vest, except for equity-settled transactions
where vesting is conditional upon a market or non-vesting
condition, which are treated as vesting irrespective of
whether or not the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or
service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified,
as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms
had not been modified, if the original terms of the
award are met. In addition, an expense is recognised
for any modification that increases the total fair value
of the share-based payment transaction, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date
of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting
conditions within the control of either the Group or
the employee are not met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated
as a replacement award on the date that it is granted,
the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they
were a modification of the original award, as described
in the previous paragraph. All cancellations of equity-

settled transaction awards are treated equally.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected
as additional share dilution in the computation of

earnings/(loss) per share.
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OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Retirement benefits schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into
the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary which operates
in Mainland China are required to participate in a
central pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. The subsidiary is required to contribute
a percentage of the basic salaries of its employees to
the Mainland Scheme to fund their retirement benefits
obligations of all existing and future retired employees
of the subsidiary. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the Mainland Scheme is to pay the ongoing
required contributions under the Mainland Scheme
mentioned above. Contributions under the Mainland
Scheme are charged to profit or loss as incurred as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of
central pension scheme.
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FOREIGN CURRENCIES

These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional
and presentation currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the
Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the
dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the
end of the reporting period. All differences are taken to
profit or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of
the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured
at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value
was determined.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at
the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities
of these entities are translated into the presentation
currency of the Company at the exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period and their profit or
loss are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
weighted average exchange rates for the period/year.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
the other comprehensive income and accumulated in
the exchange translation reserve. On disposal of an
foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in profit or loss.
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FOREIGN CURRENCIES (Continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates
for the period/year.

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the
reporting periods. However, uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the

future.

JUDGEMENTS

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following judgements,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts

recognised in the financial statements:
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JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong
and Mainland China. The Group carefully evaluates
tax implications of its transactions in accordance with
prevailing tax regulations and makes tax provision
accordingly. However, judgement is required in
determining the Group’s provision for income taxes as
there are many transactions and calculations of which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact on the
income tax and deferred tax provision in the periods
in which such determination is made. The carrying
amount of income tax payable carried as liabilities in
the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 30 June 2010 was HK$28,091,000 (31 December
2008: HK$2,302,000).

Deferred tax assets relating to tax losses are not
recognised as management considered these losses
were arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making
for some time and it is not considered probable that
taxable profits will be available against which the tax
losses can be utilised. Where the expectations are
different from the original estimates, such differences
will impact the recognition of deferred tax assets and
deferred tax in the periods in which such estimates
have been changed. The carrying amount of deferred
tax liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 30 June 2010 was HK$548,000 (31
December 2008: HK$738,000). Details of deferred tax
are set out in note 30 to the financial statements.
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JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets
The Group classifies certain assets as available-for-sale
and recognises movements of their fair values in equity.
An impairment allowance is made for available-for-sale
equity investments when there has been a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost
or where other objective evidence of impairment
exists. The determination of what is “significant” or
“prolonged” requires judgement by management who
also evaluates other relevant factors, such as the share
price volatility of the underlying equity investments.
The carrying amount of the Group’s available-for-sale
equity investments was HK$175,623,000 as at 30 June
2010 (31 December 2008: Nil).

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year,
are discussed below.

Impairment of trade receivables

The policy for provision for impairment of trade
receivables of the Group is based on the evaluation
of collectibility and ageing analysis of accounts and
on management’s estimation. A considerable amount
of estimation is required in assessing the ultimate
realisation of these receivables, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection history of each
debtor. If the financial conditions of debtors were to
deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability
to make payments, additional allowances may be
required. The carrying amounts of trade receivables in
the consolidated statement of financial position as at
30 June 2010 were HK$1,566,109,000 (31 December
2008: HK$87,000), further details of which are set out

in note 21 to the financial statements.
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ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)
Valuation of share options

As described in note 32 to the financial statements, the
Company engaged an independent firm of professionally
qualified valuers to assist in the valuation of the share
options granted during the period from 1 January 2009
to 30 June 2010. The fair value of options granted
under the share option scheme was determined using
the binomial option pricing model. The significant inputs
into the model were share price at year end date, risk-
free interest rate, exercise price and expected volatility
of the underlying shares. When the actual result of the
inputs differ from management’s estimate, it will have
an impact on share option expenses and the related
share option reserve of the Company. As at 30 June
2010, the fair value of the share options granted by
the Company was HK$22,145,000, of which a share
option expense of HK$7,201,000 was recognised during
the period ended 30 June 2010.

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their services and has three

reportable operating segments as follows:

CONTINUING OPERATIONS
(a) the factoring segment engages in provision of

factoring services;

(b) the financial investment segment engages
in securities and derivatives investment and

trading;

(c) the restaurant segment engages in operation of
a restaurant;
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DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
(d) the property investment segment engaged in
property rental;

(e) the cruise and cruise related operation segment
engaged in provision of cruise services; and

(f)  the trading of glass eel segment.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s
operating segments separately for the purpose of
making decisions about resources allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment profit/(loss),
which is a measure of adjusted profit/(loss) before tax
from continuing operations. The adjusted profit/(loss)
before tax from continuing operations is measured
consistently with the Group’s profit/(loss) before tax
from continuing operations except that interest income,
finance costs, corporate administration costs as well
as gain on disposal of subsidiaries are excluded from
such measurement.

Segment assets exclude bank balances and cash, and
other unallocated head office and corporate assets as
these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude tax payable, deferred
tax liabilities and other unallocated head office and
corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed
on a group basis.

There are no intersegment sales and transfers between
the segments.

The following tables present revenue, profit/(loss) from
continuing and discontinued operations and certain
assets, liabilities and capital expenditure information
for the Group’s business segments for the period from
1 January 2009 to 30 June 2010 and the year ended
31 December 2008.
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Notes to Financial Statements

Bt %5 ¥R R MY A

30 June 2010
—TE-TFXA=1H

Period from 1 January 2009 to 30 June 2010 —EENF-A—BEZZE-ZEFRA=
+BHEE
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
SEIEEH BRILEEXHK
Financial Operation of Property
Factoring  investment a restaurant Total mvestment Consolidated
R"E eRRE HEEE gt WERE e

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS' 000 HK$'000
THEL TAL THAL THEL THEL THAL

Segment revenue: AHEER:
Sales to external customers HETIREP 73,348 - 21,287 94,635 743 95,378
Gains from financial investment & BRE U - 154,618 - 154,618 - 154,618
73,348 154,618 21,287 249,253 743 249,996

Segment results PHEE 55431 149,983 (171) 205,243 3,899 209,142
Reconciliations: #
Unallocated interest and FARF B REmMBA

other income 607 1 608
Corporate and PERAIERZ

unallocated expenses . (55,319) - (55,319)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries &K B2 Rz s 1,189 1,101 2,290
Finance costs HEER (629) - (629)
Profit before tax B ADE R 151,001 5,001 156,092
Segment assets PHEE 1,571,023 475,312 1,666 2,048,001 - 2,048,001
Reconciliation: #
Corporate and unallocated assets ERAPHEE 1,565,127
Total assets BEAE 3,613,128
Segment liabilities AHEE 236,571 85,371 5430 327,372 - 327372
Reconciliation: ;f &%
Corporate and rERANEARE

unallocated liabilities 39,912
Total liabilities BERE 367,284
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B %5 R R B &

30 June 2010
—T-TFA=+H

Period from 1 January 2009 to 30 June 2010

—ERANF-B-—HEZE-EZFARA=

(Continued) +BHHIRE (&)
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
HELE XK RESIRE- 373
Financial Operation of Property
Factoring investment a restaurant Total  investment Consolidated
RE  SRRE LEEE gt NERE A
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
THET AT TET TET TET THET
Other segment information: ~ Ht2HE# :
Depreciation e 98 - 239 382 29 361
Unallocated KR 1,155
1,516
Loss on disposal of items of LERRRERFEER L
plant and equipment B - - 1 1 - 1
Capital expenditure* B 1,230 - 229 1,459 - 1,459
Unallocated RHE 18,215
19,674
Fair value gains on RENE 2 ATENE
investment properties - - - - 3,320 3,320
Equity-settled share option IR E 2 BRES I
expenses - - - - - -
Unallocated KR 7,201
7,201

*

equipment.

Annual Report 2009/10

Capital expenditure consists of additions to plant and

- EAXHBERBRRBINE -



Notes to Financial Statements

Bt %5 ¥R = MY A

30 June 2010
—T-TFXA=1+H

SREB(EE)ERAQ A

Year ended 31 December 2008 HeE—EEN\E+—_A=+—BItEE
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
REEEEK BRILEERK
Cruise
and cruise  Trading
Financial Operation of Property  related  of glass
Factoring investment a restaurant Total investment operation eel Total Consolidated
L)
o L ea, TEEEEE
RE SRRE BK2EE B NERE E I @t e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
Thr Tér Téxr Thr TEr TEr  TEr  TEr  TEn
Segment revenue: PHERE:
Sales to external customers ~ #EFIREF - - 14487 14,487 899 29628 37,658 68,185 82,672
Segment results: PREE ! - - 2207 (2297)  (654) (139,646) 4,323 (185977) (138,274)
Reconciliations: i -
Unallocated interest and AAMFIER
other income HA 250 78 328
Corporate and unallocated PERAAERE
expenses (8,799) - (8,799
Finance costs HHER 2) = (2)
Loss before tax RENER (10,848) (135,899) (146,747)
Segment assets: AHEE: - - 1,708 1,708 18,834 - - 1883 20542
Reconciliation: i -
Unallocated assets AAREE 78,029
Total assets EEBE 98,571
Segment liabilities: THERE: - - 614 6114 188 - - 188 6,302
Reconciliation: i
Unallocated liabilities AARARE 6,468
Total liabilties BfELE 12,770

—z2h -2 93
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Notes to Financial Statements

B %5 8 R Y &

30 June 2010
—ZT-TFA=+H

Year ended 31 December 2008 (Continued) HE_ZZNFT_A=T—HLFE
(&)
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
RERERK BALBEXH
Cruise
and cruise  Trading
Financial Operation of Property  related  of glass
Factoring investment a restaurant Total investment  operation eel Total Consolidated
ek

508 B
RE SRRH HERE & MARE XK BRRE B Ra
HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HKE'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TEn  TRn TR AR  TEAR  TEr  TEn  TEn  TEn

Other segment information: ~ Eft 5 & :

Depreciation ik - - 320 320 37 4511 20 4568 4,888
Loss on disposal of items of ~ HEMERZEEEZ

plant and equipment 5l - - 4 4 - - - - 4
Capital expenditure* BAZ - - 75 75 125 4 - 129 204
Impaiment loss of items of ~ EERFEEE

plant and equipment HESR - - - - - - 58528 58,528 58,528
Deposits written off EEME - - - - B - - 6 6
Fair value loss on investment ~ RENEZ A TEEE

properties - - - - 950 - - 950 950
Provision for an onerous BEANRE

contract - - 2,595 2,995 - - - - 2,995
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to plant and * BASHBEREIRBEIARE ©

equipment.
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30 June 2010
—Z—FTFEXA=1+H

SREB(EE)ERAQ A

GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION HhEE R
(a) Revenue from external customers (a) FREIREFZEXEE

Period from
1 January 2009 Year ended
to 30 June 31 December
2010 2008
—ETNF HZE
—F—H= —ET)E
= +=—A=+—H
NA=1+HEE IHFE
HK$’\OO_O HK$’\OO_O
FHET FHT

Continuing operations: FEEACE TS
Hong Kong BA 235,135 14,487
Mainland China PEAM 14,118 -
249,253 14,487
Discontinued operations: D4 IF LS

Hong Kong 5 743 38,557
International Waters 3 B 7k 33, - 29,628
743 68,185

(b)

The revenue information above is based on the

location of the customers.

Non-current assets

/ o

FEEEERTDURF AT RE
8

(b) FREBEE

30 June 31 December

2010 2008

—T—2F —EENF

NA=1H +=ZA=+—H

HK$’\OOﬁO HK$’\0070

FAT FATT

Hong Kong A" 17,654 19,407
Mainland China R A 1,124 =
18,778 19,407

The non-current asset information above is based
on the location of assets and excludes financial

instruments.

INFORMATION ABOUT A MAJOR CUSTOMER
Revenue from continuing operations of approximately
HK$71,710,000 (31 December 2008: Nil) was derived
from the factoring segment to a single customer.

AR EEENIABEEM
REEATEHEEMTIA -

FEEFZEH

SFIEEETG  EETLIT1,710,0008 T
—EEN\F+_A=1+—"H: &E)IBRE
RAGRIED B —EE—WFS -

—B2B2h/ -BEFH

95



N

96

Goldin Financial Holdings Limited

Notes to Financial Statements

B %5 R R B &

30 June 2010
—E-TFA=1+H

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents
the aggregate of the value of services rendered, the
net invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for
returns and discounts, and net fair value gains/(losses)
of derivative financial instruments at fair value through
profit or loss arising from financial investments during

the period/year.

BEE NAAKBEZEERE  EHA
FEMRMRBE 2 EELRE  NKRRE
Iz ELERBEZEETFE ks
REEEMNBEREEZITEcmT A
ZAFEWE(ER)FE -

An analysis of revenue, and other income and gains SEQEEER 7 EEBEBEE MR A KK
from continuing operations is as follows: AT -
Period from
1 January 2009 Year ended
to 30 June 31 December
2010 2008
—ETNF HZE
—H—H= —ETNF
—E-TF +=—A=+—H
SNA=ZTHHRE 1EFE
HK$’ 000 HK$’000
FET T
Revenue E
Handling fee income RERERE 2
and interest income FEBRAR
from factoring services F 2 WA 73,348 =
Net fair value gains RIESREIE 2
on derivative financial TEEMIAL
instruments through N AR FE
profit or loss 154,618 -
Sales of food and B KRB K
beverages, and BRRBIHERE
catering services 21,287 14,487
249,253 14,487
Other income and gains E U A KUz
Bank interest income HRITAE WA 478 -
Other interest income B A S A - 85
Fair value gains on E/\Tgfmﬁﬁféﬁz
listed financial theRIAZ
instruments through N ERE
profit or loss - 74
Others HAh 256 189
734 348
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Notes to Financial Statements

Bt %5 ¥R = MY A

30 June 2010
—ZT—FFXA=1+H

The Group’s profit/(loss) before tax from continuing

SREB(EE)ERAQ A

AEBEFELEEB ZRBA G, (B

operations is arrived at after charging/(crediting): B) TR (GTA) TSEERERT
Period from
1 January 2009 Year ended
to 30 June 31 December
2010 2008
—ETNF H=E
—fB—H=Z= —ET)N\F
—T-%% | +-A=+—H
NA=TBHME 1EFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T
Cost of inventories sold B &FEMRAK 8,285 4,925
Depreciation e 1,487 320
Employee benefit & & & #I F S'Z
expenses (including (BREEEME (HE)):
directors’ remuneration
(note 9)):
Wages and salaries TERS® 22,821 6,989
Equity-settled share EREE 2
option expenses B AR 7 i 7,201 -
Retirement benefits R IRTE A ET &R
scheme contributions* 367 247
30,389 7,236
Minimum lease payments EFLEHLIAE 2
under operating leases =EEE
in respect of buildings 12,420 5,693
Auditors’ remuneration = B AN B &
Current year KEZ 1,520 1,270
Under provision in BEFEREETR
prior year 113 -
1,633 1,270
Loss on disposal of items HE#EREZHEEE 2
of plant and equipment 518 1 41
Foreign exchange MEHZEOFE)
differences, net (5,643) 310

* At 30 June 2010, the Group had no forfeited contributions
available to reduce its contributions to the retirement benefits
scheme in future years (31 December 2008: Nil).

* jj/i\:

Z-ZTERA=+H  AEEALHEAH

R B & FERKEF T EE K2 B8 U
R ZZEENE+_A=1+—H8B: &) -

—2B2h/ -BEFEH
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30 June 2010
—T-TFA=+H

An analysis of finance costs from continuing operations
is as follows:

REKEXRBZMBEROMMT ¢

Group
RE[E
Period from
1 January 2009 Year ended
to 30 June 31 December
2010 2008
—ETNF H=E
—H—HZE —EENF
—E-TF +=-A=+—8H
NAZ+TBHE IEFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT T T
Interest on other ARAFANTBHEEZ
borrowing wholly HEMEEZFE
repayable within
five years 629 2
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Notes to Financial Statements

Bt %5 ¥R = MY A

30 June 2010
—T-TFXA=1+H

Directors’ remuneration for the period/year, disclosed
pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and Section 161 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

SREB(EE)ERAQ A

HRN,/ FEESCHEBRBEEBBHERS
FTERAR(TERZMRDES EmRAN £
MRA ) REB R EHEGI E161EHK B0
™

Group
AEE
Period from
1 January 2009 Year ended
to 30 June 31 December
2010 2008
—ETNF HE
—H—H= —ETNF
—E-EF +=ZA=+—H
NA=ZTHHRE HFEE
HK$'000 HK$’000
FAT AT
Fees e 540 360
Other emoluments of WITES CHMES -
executive directors:
Salaries, allowances o RMREDHZE
and benefits in kind 3,140 1,217
Equity-settled share NS AR 2 BIRES 1
option expenses 2,586 -
Pension scheme RRAE FIET B X
contributions - 15
5,726 1,232
6,266 1,592

—2B2h/ -BEFEH
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30 June 2010
—E-TFA=1+H

During the period from 1 January 2009 to 30 June
2010, certain directors were granted share options, in
respect of their services to the Group, under the share
option scheme of the Company, further details of which
are set out in note 32 to the financial statements. The
fair value of such options, which is recognised in profit
or loss over the vesting period, was determined at the
date of grant and the amount recognised in profit or
loss for the current period was included in the above
directors’ remuneration disclosures.

(a) INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
The fees paid to independent non-executive
directors during the period/year were as

R_EZENF-—A-—RE_ZT-ZTFXA
E-T—E/HHFEEJ CREBEARBIBERAEE  E
TEZARSEHUAEE 2 REMERBER
- E—PHBERNPERRMEI2 - 1

BEANBaRERIZEEREZAF
ERRHBHPEE EE’\*“HH%E 5 fR FE 7R
ZERFALBEETTMEHE -

(a) BIAFHTES
A,/ FERMNBYIENITEET 2
£MT

follows:
Period from
1 January 2009 Year ended
to 30 June 31 December
2010 2008
ZETNF HZE
—H—He=® ZEENF
—ET-TF +—-—A=+—8
=+ REHE 1EFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT T T
Mr. Tso Hon Sai, Bosco EEESLAE 180 120
Ms. Hui Wai Man, Shirley #H=RE&x+t 180 120
Mr. Tang Yiu Wing Bl pR S S A 180 120
540 360

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the
period from 1 January 2009 to 30 June 2010
(year ended 31 December 2008: Nil).
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30 June 2010
—T-TFXA=1+H

SREB(EE)ERAQ A

(b) EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND NON-EXECUTIVE (b) HMTEERFHUTES
DIRECTORS
Salaries, Equity-
allowances settled share Pension
and benefits option scheme Total
Fees inkind  expenses contributions remuneration
L\Miﬁé,%ﬁiég _
C FheRM  JBBE  RAER
e RENHNE T FEER B2
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TET THL THL TEL THL
Period from 1 January 2009 S el =
to 30 June 2010 ZE-FRERRAZTAEA
Executive directors: HITES :
Mr. Wong Hau Yan, Helvin* BEZE L - - 581 - 581
Ms. Hou Qin* RELLTH - 930 581 - 1,511
Mr. Zhou Dengchao* [Eketi e - 930 581 - 1,511
Mr. Wang Zhixiong™* TR - 600 392 - 992
Mr. Du Peng™* il e - 680 451 - 1,131
- 3,140 2,586 - 5,726
Non-executive directors: EHITEE -
Mr. Pan Sutong* EEBLE - - - - -
Mr. Huang Xiaojian* BEREL - - - - -
- 3,140 2,586 - 5,726

—2B2h/ -BEFEH
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30 June 2010
—E-TFA=1+H

(b) EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND NON-EXECUTIVE (b) HITEERFIHTEE(E)
DIRECTORS (Continued)
Salaries, Equity-
allowances settled share Pension
and benefits option scheme Total
Fees inkind  expenses contributions remuneration
8 $rt _
‘ e /ﬂﬁi ZERE %EWE%‘J
e RENHE T FEER ame
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’OOp HK$"0070
TET THL THL THL THL
Year ended 31 December HE-ZEZN\§TZR
2008 =+-ALEE
Executive directors: HITEE :
Mr. Wong Hau Yan, Helvin* BE AL = = - = =
Mr. Zhou Dengchao* AEBLE - - - - -
Mr. Wang Zhixiong** B/ 3/ vie - - - - -
Mr. Du Peng** il - - - - -
Mr. Wong Ching Ping, Alex? FETEE - 750 - 3 753
Mr. Wong Tak Chung, BEALL
Andrew* - 467 - 12 479
- 1,217 - 15 1,232
Non-executive directors: FHGTEE :
Mr. Pan Sutong® EEBLAE - - - - -
Mr. Huang Xiaojian* BEREE - - - - -
Ms. Hou Qin** EERL" - - - - -
- 1217 - 15 1,282
* Appointed with effect from 24 December 2008 * RZBEENFT A THBEEZRTE
* Appointed with effect from 24 December 2008 and * RZEE /\¢ +ZAZt+ A%
resigned with effect from 4 January 2010 £ - IR —ZTF—HWmA %ﬂi‘c
***  Appointed with effect from 24 December 2008 and . RZETE /\i +ZAZTHAEZE
resigned with effect from 1 February 2010 £ - WK —TFE_A—HEMT
# Resigned with effect from 29 December 2008 & RZEZENFTZAZ T NAEE
# Appointed as a non-executive director with effect from i RZZEENF+A=ZTUBEEZRE
24 December 2008 and re-designated as executive RIFPDTES  UR=ZTZENFA
director with effect from 1 June 2009 —BRATARITES
There was no arrangement under which a director R-EENF—F—HE_—_ET—FTFE XA
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during —+BERE WETMEEHRESREENR
the period from 1 January 2009 to 30 June 2010 (year EEMME 2L (BE_SENE+_H
ended 31 December 2008: Nil). =+—HIEE &) o
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30 June 2010
—T-TFA=T+H

The five highest paid employees during the period ended
30 June 2010 included three (year ended 31 December
2008: two) directors, details of whose remuneration are
set out in note 9 above. Details of the remuneration of
the remaining two (2008: three) non-director, highest
paid employees for the period are as follows:

SREB(EE)ERAQ A

BE-2-TEAA=+HILBMANLS
BHEET  S(BE-TBN\F+A
S+—RILEE : W) AEE  BEZH
SHBHR £ XM - B EBmIA
(—FENF: =) BBHEEFRA L
FEEBMT :

Group
A%
Period from
1 January 2009 Year ended
to 30 June 31 December
2010 2008
—EThE BE
—HA—H=E —EE)N\F
—T-TE | +-p=+-—~8
NA=ZTBHHE EFE
HK$’'000 HK$’000
FAT T T
Salaries, allowances and ¥ ~ 2R EWH
benefits in kind 3,040 1,339
Equity-settled share A E 2 BRES I
option expenses 616 -
Pension scheme RIRE R B3R
contributions 18 22
3,674 1,361

The number of non-director, highest paid employees
whose remuneration fell within the following bands is
as follows:

FeRR TIBEzRRHIFFEZEREA
g

Number of employees

EE A

Period from
1 January 2009 Year ended
to 30 June 31 December
2010 2008
—ETNF H=E
—HA—B= —EENF
—E—TF +=-—RA=+—8H
NA=ZTBHHE 1EFE
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000/ 7T - 3

HK$1,000,001 to
HK$1,500,000
HK$2,000,001 to
HK$2,500,000

1,000,001 TR
1,500,000 7T 1 =
2,000,001/ L&
2,500,000/ 7T

—2B2h/ -BEFEH
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30 June 2010
—E-TFA=1+H

During the period from 1 January 2009 to 30 June
2010, share options were granted to two non-director,
highest paid employees in respect of their services
to the Group, under the share option scheme of the
Company, further details of which are set out in note
32 to the financial statements. The fair value of such
options, which is recognised in profit or loss over the
vesting period, was determined as at the date of grant
and the amount included in the financial statements for
the current period is included in the above non-director,
highest paid employees’ remuneration disclosures.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate
of 16.5% (2008: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable
profits arising in Hong Kong during the period ended
30 June 2010. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere
have been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in
the jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

R-EENF-—HA-—RE_ZT-ZTFXA
=THHE REAQBBERESE - ™
FERSHHEFREARSEHUAKE R
B mER B S F RN YR
RETEES2 - REBHINBRRERZZE
BREZATERELDAREE - Bt A
EHMBRRZEEAFALERSHIFE
EREBZMERE -

RBE_ZT-ZFA=TRHILHERE
BEEZBARRBENDRHE16.5%
“ZETN\F16.5%)AEENEHERE -
Hip 5 AT ERBEF 2 MR B IR A&
BREMERZEBR I RIMNEFE

Period from
1 January 2009 Year ended
to 30 June 31 December
2010 2008
—ETNRF H=E
—HA—RA=® ZEENF
—E-TF +=-A=+—8H
=+ HHAfH HEE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT T T
Group: AEH
Current — Hong Kong NE — BB
Charge for the A,/ FEEH
period/year 24,838 70
Overprovision EF R
in prior years - (19)
Current — Elsewhere ANHER— E fhith 75
Charge for BN FEXE
the period/year 3,145 =
Deferred IR 548 -
Tax charge for AN FEHREL S
the period/year 28,531 51
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30 June 2010
—T-TFA=T+H

SREB(EE)ERAQ A

A reconciliation of the tax applicable to profit/(loss)

before tax at the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in

which the Company and its subsidiaries are domiciled

HRARERARAIREWERARIAEREE
BEZEEBEFTEZBRBAGER (&
BEBEERBEAE 2 MIE HOT RS
R ¢

to the tax expense at the effective tax rates, are as

follows:

Period from

1 January 2009

Year ended

to 80 June 31 December
2010 2008
—ETNF HZE
—H—H= —ETNEF
—E-TF +=—A=+—H
NA=1+BHM 1EFE
HK$’ 000 HK$’000
FAT FHE T
Profit/(loss) before tax BBEREXEB ZRBANRH
from continuing (E518)
operations 151,091 (10,848)
Tax at the statutory RRIETER & 2 H 18
tax rates 24,930 (1,790)
Higher tax rate for HMBER o Re =R
other countries 1,069 -
Adjustments in respect  BfF HAE BN HARI 18 2 #3 &&
of current tax
of previous periods - (19)
Income not subject BARTA
to tax (816) (28)
Expenses not deductible A 1% 5T 2
for tax 2,548 1,215
Tax losses utilised from  {FRBAHM 2 HIEEE
previous periods - (40)
Tax losses for the period/ KiERZHME,~
year not recognised FEMIBEEE 839 677
Taxable temporary AERERREREEE
differences not
recognised - 36
Reversal of taxable FERTE R =280
temporary differences (1) -
Others H b (38) =
Tax charge at the Group’s EAEEERHE 2 HIEX T
effective rate 28,531 51

—2B2h/ -BEFEH
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30 June 2010
—E-TFA=1+H

The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the
Company for the period from 1 January 2009 to 30
June 2010 includes profit of HK$82,469,000 (year
ended 31 December 2008: loss of HK$101,480,000)
which has been dealt with in the financial statements
of the Company (note 33(b)).

On 16 October 2009, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with an independent third party to
dispose of the entire issued share capital of Lion Castle
Limited (“Lion Castle”) and the entire shareholders’ loan
due to the Group by Lion Castle and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Lion Castle Group”) for a cash
consideration of HK$19,833,000. The principal activity
of the Lion Castle Group is property investment. The
disposal which constituted a discloseable transaction
under the Listing Rules was completed on 24 October
2009. Upon completion, the Group recognised a gain
on disposal of subsidiaries of HK$1,101,000. Upon
disposal, the Group ceased to have operation in the
property investment operating segment. Accordingly,
the operating segment of property investment was
classified as a discontinued operation for the period
ended 30 June 2010.

On 11 July 2008, the Group entered into an agreement
with an independent third party to dispose of the entire
issued share capital of Quick Treasure Investments
Limited (“Quick Treasure”) and the entire shareholders’
loan due to the Group by Quick Treasure and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Quick Treasure Group”) for
a cash consideration of approximately HK$62,734,000.
The Quick Treasure Group held the cruise and cruise-
related operation of the Group. The transaction was
completed on 24 October 2008, the date the control of
Quick Treasure was passed to the acquirer. Accordingly,
the operating segment of the cruise and cruise-related
operation was classified as a discontinued operation
for the year ended 31 December 2008.
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HBUFE=HFIUE B W& HElLion
Castle Limited ([Lion Castle]) Z & #8E
ZEITIRAN - LA K Lion Castle & EHiE A A
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SREB(EE)ERAQ A

At the end of March 2008, due to the reallocation
of financial resources and changes in personnel, the
Group ceased the business of trading in glass eel.
Accordingly, the operating segments of trading of glass
eel was classified as a discontinued operation for the
year ended 31 December 2008.

Further details of the above disposals of subsidiaries
are set out in note 34 to the financial statements.

n=

TEENF=ZARK AREHALMB

SERA LD A AT
HER - Bt BE-TEAFT=

\\\\\\\\

A=t—HBILFE "

EEEAREZEE

SBHBREKILEEER -

tREERBAR 2 E—F

WARMIFES4 ©

G NE

The profit/(loss) for the period/year from the discontinued BERIEEEEB 2N/ FERF, (B
operations is analysed as follow: B)DTWT
Period from
1 January 2009 Year ended
to 30 June 31 December
2010 2008
—EENF HE
—H—H=ZE —EENF
T —ZF +=-A=+—8”
ANA=+HEME IEFE
Note HK$’'000 HK$’000
B 5 FHET FH& T
Profit/(loss) from BERIEEEEB BN/
discontinued operations  EE M, (EE)
for the period/year 3,352 (136,611)
Gain on disposal of HEERIEEE 2 e
discontinued operations 34(a) 1,101 -
Profit/(loss) from the BERIEEEER 2R,
discontinued operations  (E#8) 4,453 (136,611)

—2B2h/ -BEFEH
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The results of discontinued operations for the period/

year are presented below:

BRIEEEEB BN FHEEE25IW
™

Period from
1 January 2009 Year ended
to 30 June 31 December
2010 2008
—ETNF HZE
—A—H=Z= —ET)N\F
—E-TF +=—A=+—H
NA=Z+THHE WHEE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
B 5 FET T
Revenue ] 743 68,185
Cost of sales SH & AKX AR - (95,529)
Bank interest income RITH EUA - 163
Other income E bl A 1 4,344
Administrative expenses THAX (164) (53,584)
Impairment loss on items HeE R EIE B R ESE
of plant and equipment 16 - (58,528)
Profit/(loss) from the BRILCEER 2T
discontinued operations (EE) 580 (134,949)
Profit/(loss) recognised on  AF(EEE 2 HEREF,
the remeasurement (E598)
to fair value 17 3,320 (950)
Profit/(loss) before tax ERIEEEER BB ATNEF,
from the discontinued (&518)
operations 3,900 (135,899)
Income tax: Fris®i -
Related to pre-tax profit B R B AR A - (869)
Related to remeasurement BB AFEEH
to fair value (548) 157
Profit/(loss) for the BRRIEREEB BN
period/year from the FEuM (EE)
discontinued operations 3,352 (136,611)
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The disclosures presented above for the period from EXRZZEENF-—A—HEZZ—ZF
1 January 2009 to 30 June 2010 included net rental ANA=1H81H F?E@JZT&%%H R
income from investment properties of HK$615,000 BEREWE AR AFEG15000% T
(31 December 2008: HK$784,000), which comprised ZEENFTZH=1T—8 :784,000/%
gross rental income of HK$743,000 (31 December JT) c IR S AU AT743,0008 L( ==
2008: HK$899,000) less direct operating expenses of ZNF+=A=+—8 : 899,000/ 7T )R
HK$128,000 (31 December 2008: HK$115,000). HEZERYT128,0008 L (— T )N\F+

Z—A=+—H :115,000/87T)st & -

The net cash outflows incurred by the discontinued UTAERIEKEETEE RS R FHE
entities are as follows:

Period from
1 January 2009 Year ended
to 80 June 31 December
2010 2008
—EETNF HE
—HA—HZE ZET)N\F
—ZE-FF | +-A=+—H
NAZTHEE IEFE
HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
Operating activities K& EE) 590 (79,342)
Investing activities Tx,\/ﬁib 1 170
Financing activities & EE (18,779) 61,004
Net cash outflows Remb #5E (18,188) (18,168)

Earnings/(loss) per share: TREF (EE) -
Basic, from the BER  REABKRIKGCEERS
discontinued HKO0.27 cents (HK$3.40)
operations 0.277%1l (8.40% L)
Diluted, from the B REORIEREER

discontinued HKO0.27 cents (HK$3.40)
operations 0.277%1l (8.40% L)

—gzzhn -zx% 109
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The calculations of basic and diluted earnings/(loss)
per share from the discontinued operations are based

on:

ERIELEEB 2 EREAREERA

(BE)SEZFAEDER :

Period from
1 January 2009 Year ended
to 30 June 31 December
2010 2008
—EENF HE
—H—H= —EENF
—ET-TF +=—A=+—H
NA=+HEE LEFE

Profit/(loss) attributable to K & E%%Jii“%%sz
ordinary equity holders ~ AAF Ei@fER
of the Company from %%EAJ%(E?E%'J/(J%TE)
the discontinued
operations

Weighted average number AR EEREARRF],
of ordinary shares in (&B8) 28R/ FA
issue during the BT E @R N
period/year used in the
basic earnings/(loss)
per share calculation

Weighted average number ARG EFREERF],
of ordinary shares used  (&18) 2 ZEA
in the diluted InkEFEHE

earnings/(loss) per
share calculation

The weighted average number of ordinary shares in
issue during the year ended 31 December 2008 used in
the basic loss per share calculation has been restated
to reflect the change in the number of ordinary shares
as a result of the share consolidation (note 31(c)) and
rights issues (note 31(d)) in the current period.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary share in
issue during the year ended 31 December 2008.

110  Annual Report 2009/10
A |

HK$4,453,000 (HK$136,611,000)
4,453,000% 7T (136,611,000 7T)

(Restated)

(&%)

1,657,777,000 40,222,000
1,665,726,000 40,222,000

AEEREABERERZBEZE _TTN
FT_A=+—BULEFESHTERRM
BFHEEEES - ARBREE B HFEAR
2 & Bt (B EE31(c )))32 tAR (B 5E31(d)) 3&
oz BB S B

BE_ZZN\F+-A=1+—HLFE -
AEBYED BT OBEBELRK
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Period from
1 January 2009 Year ended
to 30 June 31 December
2010 2008
—ETNEF HZE
—HA—B=% :$$A¢
—E-Z2F  F+ZA=+—
ANA=Z+HEE Jtif
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T FHIT
Proposed final dividend &% AR HIRL B
- HK2.00 cents — B EER2.00/8(L
(31 December (ZZZENF
2008: Nil) per +=ZA=+—H8: &)
ordinary share 66,411 _
The proposed final dividend for the period ended 30 HEZZTZFA=-+HALHBEZEZ
June 2010 is subject to the approval of the Company’s REREEFARAIRRERANEER 2=
shareholders at the forthcoming 2010 annual general T—ZFREBFRG LHE - FAIE
meeting. These financial statements do not reflect the B REMBEHRRLERMERNRE

dividend payable.

The calculation of basic earnings/(loss) per share
amounts is based on the profit/(loss) for the period/year
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company,
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
of 1,657,777,000 (year ended 31 December 2008:
40,222,000 (restated)) in issue during the period,
as adjusted to reflect the share consolidation (note
31(c)) and rights issues (note 31(d)) during the current
period.

BREXRERF(EBEBR)EBEIREERAA
TREREA ARGER FERF (B
B) UERHERE BT ERIMETFSE
1,657,777,000 (B2 FEN\F+=A
=+—BILEE : 40,222,000/ (& 7))
ATE WEAENRBMEAPAZERMNE
OF (M 3E31(c)) R AR (M E31(d)) °

—2B2h/ -BEFEH
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The calculation of diluted earnings per share amount for
the period ended 30 June 2010 is based on the profit
for the period attributable to ordinary equity holders
of the Company. The weighted average number of
ordinary shares used in the calculation is the number
of ordinary shares in issue during the period, as used
in the basic earnings per share calculation, and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares assumed
to have been issued at no consideration on the deemed
exercise or conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares into ordinary shares.

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings/(loss)

per share are based on:

HE_Z-TFA=ZTHLHBZER
BERNSEDIREBEPARNRR] L BES
HBARBMGENE - tERARAZE
BN FABHAE BT EBRKE
(Bt EEREXRANMERERR) - M
EBENEFABIIBRERABELSE
HEBARERATTERER ST BRI
TREHET -

FREAREERN (BR)EBEZHE
THER

Period from
1 January 2009 Year ended
to 30 June 31 December
2010 2008
—ETNEF BHE
—A—H=E ZETENF
—ET-TF +=ZA=+—-H
ANA=+HEE LEFE
HK$’'000 HK$’000
FHET FHTT
EARNINGS ZF|
Profit/(loss) attributable ~ FARFEEBREAREF
to ordinary equity (B1B) 2 AN R A T RERE
holders of the Company, B AREWEEF, (EE) :
used in the basic
earnings/(loss) per share
calculation:
From continuing KA EEEET
operations 122,560 (10,899)
From discontinued KEERIEREER
operations 4,453 (186,611)
127,013 (147,510)
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Number of shares

it & B
Period from
1 January 2009 Year ended
to 30 June 31 December
2010 2008
ZETNF
—H—H=E HE
—E-TF —EENF
~NA=+H +=ZA=+—~”
HAfA LEFE
(Restated)
(&31)
SHARES B
Weighted average number ARt EFRELAF],/
of ordinary shares in (B8 28R/ FA
issue during the period/ %77 & @A INAE 198
year used in the basic
earnings/(loss) per share
calculation 1,657,777,000 40,222,000
Effect of dilution - HEr e —
weighted average TR TS
number of ordinary
shares:
Share options R R 7,949,000 =
1,665,726,000 40,222,000

The weighted average number of ordinary shares in
issue during the year ended 31 December 2008 used in
the basic loss per share calculation has been restated
to reflect the change in the number of ordinary shares
as a result of the share consolidation (note 31(c)) and
rights issues (note 31(d)) in the current period.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares
in issue during the year ended 31 December 2008.

STEEREAEEREAZEHE-ZZN
F+ZA=+—HIEFEDEHTZREBRM
BREHHEEEEY  URBREZAHAZ
B& 10 & BF (B 3E31(c ))&Tﬁ\ﬁi(ﬁﬁim(d))
ERR 2 TImARE R &

BE_TTN\F+_A=T—HLEEFER
SEYECRTOEEEEL AR -

—2B2h/ -BEFEH
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GROUP rE
Machinery  Furniture Crockery,
Cruise and and  Computer Motor  utensils  Leasehold
Liner equipment  fixtures equipment  vehicles and linens improvements Total
BER  GHR C BR R EENE
5 L] 58 EhEE AE ROHER 3 2t
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Tér T  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEx
Cost: A
At 1 January 2008 R-FEN\E-A-H 121000 4392 798 - 153 220 - 183747
Additions AE - 29 175 - - - - 204
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 34(b)) ~ HEMBAZ(H34() (1210000 (3462 (4,439) - - - - (128.901)
Disposals & = (447) (53) = (153) = = (653)
At 31 December 2008 R-EENETZA=1-H
and 1 January 2009 R=EENE-F-H - 52 3,665 - - 220 - 4307
Additions AE - - 6,316 198 177 - 11,983 19,674
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 34(a)) HEREAF (iE34(a)) - - (191) - - - - (191)
Disposals iHE - - (2) - - - - )
At 30 June 2010 RZE-ZExA=TH - 512 9,788 198 1177 20 11983 23878
Accumulated depreciation ZHITERAE:
and impairment:
At 1 January 2008 W-23)\§-A-8 2,752 606 3,666 - 67 - - 7,091
Provided during the year EREE 3,348 500 1,085 - 5 - - 4888
Impaiment loss (note 13) AEBRWT13) 50500 2835 8,193 - - - - 58508
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 34(b))  HEMERZ(F34(0) (58,600)  (3410)  (4,439) - - - - (66,449)
Disposals & - (268) (48) - (72) - - (388)
At 31 December 2008 R-EENETZA=1-H
and 1 January 2009 R=EEnE-A-H - 263 3,407 - - - - 3,670
Provided during the period AR - 182 467 45 87 - 785 1,616
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 34(a)  HEMBRE(HzE34(a) - - (86) - - - - (86)
Disposals & - - (1) - - - - 1)
Exchange realignment Eiag - - - - 1 - - 1
At 30 June 2010 RZE-SE R=TH - 39 3,781 45 88 - 785 5,100
Net book value: RESE:
At 30 June 2010 R-E-FE/ A=1A - 17 6,001 153 1,089 20 11198 18,778
At 31 December 2008 RZEENETA=T-H - 249 258 - - 20 - 72
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SREB(EE)ERAQ A

COMPANY RAF]
Computer
equipment
BN E
HK$’000
T T
Cost: XA
At 1 January 2008, 31 December 2008 RZEENF—H—H -
and 1 January 2009 —EENFTHA=+—8k
—EZNF—A—H -
Additions NE 42
At 30 June 2010 RZE—ZFFA=+H 42
Accumulated depreciation: R2EHinE
At 1 January 2008, 31 December 2008 R-ZTEZENFE—HF—H
and 1 January 2009 —EEN\F+_A=+—H8XK
—ZTThF-HA—H -
Provided during the period HA A ¢ 4 17
At 30 June 2010 RZE—FTFA="TH 17
Net book value: BRTEDF(E ¢
At 30 June 2010 RZE-—ZTFA=1H 25
At 31 December 2008 RZZEZENF+=_A=+—H =
During the year ended 31 December 2008, the Group REZE_ZEZNF+_A=1+—HLF
made an impairment loss of HK$52,500,000 on its B AEBEHRTHEHEBMBARNE

cruise liner for the shortfall of the latest recoverable
amount below carrying value of the asset before the
disposal of relevant subsidiaries. The latest recoverable
amount of the asset was determined on the basis of its
fair value less costs to sell, which was based on the
valuation carried out by Carmichael & Clarke Co. Ltd.,
an external professional valuer. The valuation was arrived

at by reference to recent market transaction prices for

cruise liners with similar structures and conditions. In FHREME -

the opinion of the directors, the fair value less costs

to sell was higher than the value in use.

AEEZ&M AL KRS ERERER - &
LT AS BB K 1EH52,500,000% 7T 2 &
BER BEZEHAIKESBRAAT
BERIEERAET - M8HERK AR A INE
= B {ERNCarmichael & Clarke Co. Ltd.
ZIEEREE - HENSEHULE RIF
2 Bém 2 AT IH
EZ2ER  QAFERBEXREAEDER

RPEREE - KR

—2B2h/ -BEFEFEH
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Notes HK$’000
B 5 FHETT
Land and buildings in Hong Kong on FHEIENBE T cEBS LR
medium-term leases g5
Carrying amount at 1 January 2008 )5/\77 ENF—H—BHZ
HE ) 19,630
Net loss from a fair value adjustment IE ANEEREZEBEFE 13 (950)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2008 RZZEZENF+H
=+—BZERHEE 18,680
Net profit from a fair value adjustment REAFERAR M FRE 13 3,320
Disposal of subsidiaries L EH B AR 34(a) (22,000)
Carrying amount at 30 June 2010 RZE—FFNH
=+ HZERHE -
The Group’s investment properties were revalued on 30 REBZREMEDR_ZEENF A=

June 2009 by Dudley Surveyors Limited, independent
professional qualified valuers, at HK$20,570,000 on
an open market, existing use basis. All of the Group’s
investment properties were held for rental earning

or capital appreciation purposes. The directors of

THHRBEYEXESERMEMENTIZ
MBERARIRENAREENARTISE
& 420,570,000 7T - AEBEMAREY
FHUAREERNNEREBEBENMITE °
ARABEZELREBHEMINERHE

the Company assessed the fair values of investment THEZATFERE  FEHEEEVMERT
properties on the date of disposal with reference to the EHEZAFE-

fair value consideration agreed with the counterparty

as stipulated in the sale and purchase agreement.
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At 31 December 2008, the amount represented an
earnest money of Renminbi (“RMB”) 50 million paid to
two independent third parties (the “Vendors”) for the
proposed acquisition of the entire equity interest in Favor
Mega Group Limited (“Favor Mega”) and its outstanding
debts owing to its shareholders, for a consideration of
HK$400 million (subject to adjustments). Favor Mega
is an investment holding company holding the entire
paid up registered capital of Guangzhou Singular Gold
Electronics Co., Ltd., which is a wholly-foreign-owned
enterprise established in People’s Republic of China
(“PRC”) and is principally engaged in the processing of
printed circuit boards for telecommunication and muti-
media products. The Group subsequently entered into a
contractual acquisition agreement on 4 February 2009.
The earnest money was unsecured, non-interest-bearing
and repayable to the Company if no definitive agreement
could be reached. Details of the proposed acquisition
were set out in the Company’s announcements dated
12 February 2009 and 17 March 2009.

On 26 March 2009, the Group and the Vendors entered
into a deed of termination (the “Deed of Termination”)
pursuant to which the Group agreed to pay the Vendors
HK$2 million in consideration of the Vendors agreeing
to enter into the Deed of Termination. The Vendors and
the Group unconditionally and irrevocably confirmed
that the acquisition agreement dated 4 February 2009
(as amended by the supplemental agreement dated
17 March 2009) was terminated with effect from the
date of the Deed of Termination. The earnest money
was refunded to the Group during the period ended
30 June 2010.

—EENFF+_A=+—RAzZHELHE
# M X {8400,000,000/% jo( A] F 58 & )
Iy B Favor Mega Group Limited ([Favor
Megal ) 2 BHRBEREEXBRR 2 REE
EHEEF MAMBBILE=H(E
7 1) X4 AR#50,000,000C 2B E S ©
Favor Mega B &EZER A& - FFHEM
BREEFERARZEBHAREMBAE -
mMEMBRREFERARANRFEARKE
MBE(HEDKRIZIEBECE £
EREARTARSEBER ZERIRET
ML - AEEEER _ZTTNAF_ANA
AVEANMNE RS AEAE S REER
A B RERKEERNEERZZBR
TEETFTAQAR - EHZWEETEZFBH
RARFDHIR _ZBEEANF_A+ B X
“ETNF=ZRAT+ERFIEZAT -

RZZTTARF=ZA=+8 A5EHHEE
HRIVRIERB(TRIERZE]D - &K K
SEEEMEH X 1{42,000,000% 7T - 1E
RENTABUKRLERBEZHKE BT A
NG BB AR A R TR R AR AR LB =
TENF - AMBETL 2 W= (KB H
R-ETNE=ZA+TEBZMABEME
Y ERIERBAMEEY - BHESER
BHE-_Z-ZFA=THILHERNRE
TAEH -

—2B2h/ -BEFEH
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Company
PiN/NEE]

30 June 31 December
2010 2008
—E—ZF —EENF
NA=1H +=ZA=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT T T
Unlisted shares, at cost JE LMD @ RIRE 939 939
Less: Impairment B ORE (939) (939)
Due from subsidiaries NG E 2,184,496 144,956
Less: Impairment * B A (105,351) (122,792)
2,079,145 22,164

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment. The
carrying amounts of the amounts due from subsidiaries
approximate their fair values.

# Impairment losses were recognised during the period ended
30 June 2010 and the year ended 31 December 2008 due to
sustained loss making conditions of these subsidiaries.

Movements in the provision for impairment of amounts

due from subsidiaries are as follows:

FEUCF B AR RS EER - 28 MEE
EEERR - BKRHEBLRREAEZREAE
HERNFEMESE -

*

MARSHEARSREEEE SARE
—E-TEAASTALSHRAE-ZT
NE+ZB=+—BILEERRAERE -

FEUASFT B8 A RSB O RMERFHEBWT ¢

Company
PiN/N)
30 June 31 December
2010 2008
—E-TF ZEENF
~A=+8 | +ZA=t+—H
HK$'000 HK$’000
TAT T
At beginning of ¥, F )
the period/year 122,792 31,721
Impairment loss EERREEE
recognised - 91,071
Reversal of VEREN S 4E]
impairment loss (17,441) -
At end of the period/year Hik &R 105,351 122,792

Annual Report 2009/10




Notes to Financial Statements

Bt %5 ¥R = MY A

30 June 2010
—ZT—FFXA=1+H

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as

follows:

Name

afE

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operations
e/
kg2

Nominal value

of issued
ordinary/registered
share capital
BRTEER/
HRAEE

SREB(EE)ERAQ A

TEMBRRFEOT

Percentage of
equity
attributable
to the Company
NG
RERADL.
Direct Indirect

E& f&

Principal
activities

IR

Matsunichi Goldbase
Global Administration Limited
(formerly known as Goldwing
Holdings Limited)
RBELERRTHARAR
(AR KERERAR)

Matsunichi Goldbase Limited
(formerly known as Golden Team
Corporation Limited)

RESETHERBRAA]
(FIEemERAR)

Matsunichi Goldbase Management
Limited (formerly known as
Luckystep Holdings Limited)

NE2EEEREAR A
(AR ERARAR)

Matsunichi Goldbase Global
(Management) Limited
(formerly known as Wealthmark
Holdings Limited)

RESERN (B]) ARAR
(FIBERERERAR)

Goldin Factoring Holdings Limited
(formerly known as Gold Unicorn
International Limited) *

RRRE (£8) ERAA
(FEeRERARAR) ¢

Goldin Factoring Limited
(formerly known as Fortune Gold
International Limited) *
BREBREERERAR
(EREERARAR) ¢

British Virgin Islands
(“BV'”)

RERLES
((RBRXES])

Hong Kong

&R

BVI

ERELES

BVI

RERIES

BVI

RBRIES

Hong Kong

R

United States Dollar
(“US$”) 1

EF

HK$1

187

US$1

EF

US$1

US$1

EI

HK$1

13T

100 =
= 100
= 100

100 =

100 =
= 100

Investment holding

RERR

Financial investment
and provision of
administrative services

SRIRA R THRS

Financial investment

TRRE

Investment holding

Provision of factoring
services

AR R

—2B2h/ -BEFEH
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Place of Nominal value Percentage of
incorporation/ of issued equity
registration ordinary/registered attributable Principal
Name and operations share capital to the Company activities
ek /A BRTLER/ NG
48 kg2 HMRAEE REBDHL TERK
Direct Indirect
BE itk
Goldin Factoring Financing Limited ~ Hong Kong HKS$1 = 100 Inactive
(formerly known as Gold
Fourseas Limited) *
BREE(ME)ERAA &b iy TER
(IEemEERAR) *
Goldin Financial Plan Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 = 100 Inactive
(formerly known as Golden
Stock Limited) *
R (MKER)ERAT &b iy TER
(FIEeRARAR) *
Goldin Fund Limited Hong Kong HK$1 = 100 Inactive
(formerly known as Golden
Action (Asia) Limited) *
RRESERERAF &b iy TER
(FEele (M) BRAR) ¢
Goldin Factoring (China) BVI US$1 100 - Investment holding
Development Limited
(formerly known as Gold
Sunshine Limited) *
RRRE (PE) ERARAR RERTHS Er RERER
(MiEeBARAT) *
Goldin Factoring (Shenzhen) Limited Hong Kong HKS1 - 100 Inactive
(formerly known as Gold
Jade International Limited) *
BREERINERAR 0 18T FER
(AR ERRABRAR) *
Goldin Factoring, Inc.** United States US$10 - 100 Provision of factoring
of America services
FHNEERE 10%7T RALRIE IR
RERE(RE)EE PRC US$99,670,000* = 100 Provision of factoring
BRRA services
G 99,670,000 7" RALRIE IR
Victory Bright Holdings Limited BVI US$1 100 - Investment holding
EBRTES E RERR
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30 June 2010
—ZT—FFXA=1+H

SREB(EE)ERAQ A

Place of Nominal value Percentage of
incorporation/ of issued equity
registration ordinary/registered attributable Principal
Name and operations share capital to the Company activities
ek /A BETLER/ NG
B kg2 HMRAEE REBDL TEXRK
Direct Indirect
EE itk
Crown Rate Investment Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 = 100 Operating a Japanese
restaurant
EEREERATA B 1B BERAZE

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results for the period or formed a substantial portion
of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

The statutory financial statements are not audited by Ernst
& Young Hong Kong or other member firm of the Ernst &
Young global network.

ok

The amount stated represents the paid up capital.
# These wholly owned subsidiaries were incorporated/registered

during the period from 1 January 2009 to 30 June 2010.

@ SIRRE(RE)EEER AT is registered as a wholly-
foreign-owned enterprise under the law of PRC.

BE=ZRA LRSI ZARAMBARA
BAKEHARBENEARELBKRE
EFEZERRD  MEERS > WM
Hitf B AR HBEHSTRBBARITE °

* VA TE B 15 R I 3F R B B 2K B AT = A5 A
S E A Lk RERBAREL B R A EAZ

o e BARMREA o

L ZEZEWMBARAIR=ZEENF—A—B=ZE
—E-TEXNAZTHEEEMAST 5
Hv:H»o

e BREE(FE)BERARQBDREHBEE
REMRIEBEDRSE -

—2B2h/ -BEFEH
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Goldin Financial Holdings Limited

Notes to Financial Statements

B %5 R R B &

30 June 2010
—E-TFA=1+H

Group
REE
30 June 31 December
2010 2008
—T—EF —ZETN\F
NA=1+H +—-—A=+—8
HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET FHEIT
Equity investment listed REAMM T EMZRAKE - RAFE
elsewhere, at fair value 175,623 =
The above investment consists of investment in equity TR EOREERHEEERMEEZ
securities which were designated as available-for-sale RAZFLFILE  WEETEINHAHIEE -
financial assets and has no fixed maturity date or ETRAFS A FEDERM S WMES
coupon rate. The fair values of listed equity securities e

are based on the quoted market prices.

The market value of the Group’s available-for-sale equity
investment at the date of approval of these financial
statements was approximately HK$179,051,000.

At 30 June 2010 and 31 December 2008, the Group
did not hold any available-for-sale equity investments
with carrying amounts exceeding 10% of the total

assets of the Group.
As at 30 June 2010, the above available-for-sale

investment was pledged to secure other borrowing to
the Group (note 29).
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Notes to Financial Statements
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30 June 2010
—T-TFA=T+H

SREB(EE)ERAQ A

Group
AEH
30 June 31 December
2010 2008
—E—FF —EENF
~NA=+H +=-—RA=+—8H
HK$’000 HK$’\OOO
FAET FABTT
Trade receivables JEUE 5 BRI 1,566,109 1,131
Impairment VERED - (1,044)
1,566,109 87

The Group’s trade receivables mainly arose from factoring
services to companies in Hong Kong and the PRC.
The credit period granted is generally for a period of
120 days to 150 days. Each customer has a maximum
credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control
over its outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are
regularly reviewed by senior management. There is a
significant concentration of credit risk as approximately
31% (year ended 31 December 2008: Nil) of the Group’s
trade receivables due from the Group’s largest debtor.
Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing, except for
trade receivables of HK$1,322,982,000 which bear
interest at rates ranging from 4.35% to 4.96% per
annum. The carrying amounts of trade receivables

approximate their fair values.

AEEZERESIEFRETERBERMER
RAEARRERERYE -EEH—RA
120K 2150k - BUBRFHRERSEE
ER - REBESKHEREBERKBRRAE
BEBREEG  SATEES THRTEY
BER e HRABI% (HEZZTTNF+=
A=+—RHLEFE  B)2A5BREKES
ERHEIREAEBGABBA WEELEE
AfEERRE+RME - B1,322,982,000
BT ERE SERIZFEFNERL4IER
49625 BHN - BUE HERFHITEE -
RKRE SRR RAEREQAFERS -

—2B2h/ -BEFEH

123

4



Goldin Financial Holdings Limited

Notes to Financial Statements

B %5 R R B &

30 June 2010
—E-TFA=1+H

An aged analysis of the Group’s trade receivables UTAEREZARNBREBERE RS
as at the end of the reporting periods, based on the EEKESEFRRNSERE AR ZER D
invoice date of the sales invoices purchased, and net T -

of provisions, is as follows:

Group
REE
30 June 31 December
2010 2008
—E-TF ZEENF
~NA=1+H +ZA=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET T T
Current to 90 days BNERZ 90K 1,033,944 87
91 to 120 days 91E120K 376,163 -
121 to 180 days 1212180k 156,002 -
1,566,109 87
The movements in provision for impairment of trade FEWE SERRERBEZESAT -
receivables are as follows:
Group
REE
30 June 31 December
2010 2008
—E-TF ZEENF
ANA=1+H +ZA=+—H
HK$'\OOﬁO HK$’\0070
FHET FH&T
Balance at beginning of  Efi#] F 4L &
the period/year 1,044 1,044
Impairment losses i sH R B & 1E
written off (1,044) -
Balance at end of AR R4
the period/year - 1,044
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30 June 2010
—T-TFA=T+H

Included in the above provision for impairment of trade
receivables as at 31 December 2008 was a provision for
individually impaired trade receivables of HK$1,044,000
as at 31 December 2008 with a carrying amount before
provision of HK$1,044,000. The individually impaired
trade receivables related to customers that were in
financial difficulties.

The aged analysis of the Group’s trade receivables, that

are not considered to be impaired is as follows:

B2 ZZ\F+_A=+—HzLiE
KB SERFBRERERREEE-_ETNF
TZA=+—BZERREREKE S EX
1,044,000/ 70 * ZEXRBEBNBREEN 2
8RB A1,044,0007% 7T & Bl 8 B 1 1
BoRAEBYBAE TFEH -

AR BEREZAEEEYE SRR
oM

Group
rEH
30 June 31 December
2010 2008
—E-TF ZEENF
~NA=+H +ZA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Neither past due nor R HA R OR (B
impaired 1,410,107 87
Less than 1 month #ES 218 A
past due 156,002 -
1,566,109 87

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to customers for whom there was no recent

history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to independent customers that have a good track record
with the Group. The directors of the Company are of the
opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary
in respect of these balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances
are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does
not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
over these balances.

REHARRE 2 BRI NL M &
R EP °

B 8 8B ROR (B 2 B M AR R T B AR SR 1B
BEMERCBLEFER ARAES
RAEBANAERERELRERE B

AEEWE - REEY ERZFERTE
EAEMRAEMBEERE -

—2B2h/ -BEFEH
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Goldin Financial Holdings Limited

Notes to Financial Statements

B %5 R R B &

30 June 2010
—E-TFA=1+H

Group Company
A5HE v N/N]
30 June | 31 December 30 June | 31 December
2010 2008 2010 2008
—ET-TF —EEN\F —T-%F —TTN\E
~NA=TH [tZRA=1—H ~A=tTH +ZR=1—H
Notes |  HK$'000 | HK$'000 = HK$'000 | HK$'000
k=3 TET TET FAT TAT
Prepayments BRFIE 201 437 - =
Pledged deposit at a financial REfEEZ
institution BHRER (a) 46,474 - - =
Deposit at a financial institution ~ REeBMEE LS (b) 237,188 = - =
Other deposits and other Hiige REM
receivables FEW R 14,735 1,057 4,140 356
298,598 1,494 4,140 356
Notes: BEeE -

(a) The pledged deposit represented a deposit placed at a
financial institution, a related company, as collateral for
the Group’s derivative investments held on 30 June 2010
(note 23) (31 December 2008: Nil) and was non-interest
bearing.

(b) The deposit of HK$237,188,000 as at 30 June 2010 (31
December 2008: Nil) represented a deposit placed at the
same financial institution as mentioned in note (a). The
balance is unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable
on demand.

The related company as mentioned in notes (a) and (b)
is a company beneficially controlled by a substantial
shareholder of the Company (note 38).

The carrying amounts of the Group’s deposits and other
receivables approximate their fair values.

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired
and the financial assets included in the above balances
related to receivables for which there was no recent
history of default.

Annual Report 2009/10

(a) EREREEMRN-—REBEE(FEAF)
ZEF ERAEER-_ZE-—ZFA=F
BREZITERE ZEM(MFE23) (ZFF
NE+ZA=+—H:8&) BARE -

=

by BLEZFT-—ZTFA=Z+tHZEK®2
237,188,000 T( —_EZNFE+_A=+—
B &)EFERRH @Atz F— & g
BriEe EARKGTRERT 2EREE

M@ RO)MAZEERTRBRARETE
BERE miEd 2 2 A (MiEE38) o

AEEZS REMRKER Z FHERR
RNFERE -

LA BEESBEAMIORE - 5 A LB AR
ZEMEETIAN O B R .
YRR



SREB(EE)ERAQ A

Notes to Financial Statements
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30 June 2010
—T-TFA=T+H

Group

NEEE
30 June 31 December
2010 2008
—s—2F —TTNF
NA=Z+A +=—A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’\OOO
FHT T T

Futures listed in REBSEMZHE -

Hong Kong, at fair value 12 AF(E 16,027 =

The above derivative financial instruments at 30 June
2010 were classified as held for trading. Their fair
values are based on quoted market prices.

These futures contracts subsequently matured in July
2010.

At 30 June 2010 and 31 December 2008, the Group
did not hold any financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss with carrying amounts exceeding 10%
of the total assets of the Group.

The derivative financial instruments are secured by a
deposit of HK$46,474,000 (note 22(a)) at a financial
institution.

At the end of the reporting period, cash and bank
balances of the Group denominated in RMB amounted
to approximately HK$7,230,000 (31 December 2008:
Nil). The RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies. However, under Mainland China’s Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised
to conduct foreign exchange business.

—T-TEXASTAZ LMTESRT
ANDBEARERS  RATERET
BB -

g

R\
° 4B
&
iy
op
2%
=
O
T‘i
|
A
\
A
_FH
r\,
i}
"

N-E—ZTFENA=+BEE-_ZEZTNFE+
ZA=+—HB AEEIARFEEMER
ERBAEEEERBI0ON 2 NIBRER
ARFEREZEMEE -

MESLRMTEAENUAGERR KL R#iE 2
46,474,000 L% & (M 22(a)) 1E &
R o

RIBEBHER  REEUARBHEZRE
MIRTT 7 © B 43E 7,230,000 L (=ZF
TNF+ZA=+—0: &) - AREBTH
BERAMRAEMER - A BEFEA
2 CHNE & BRG] I 45 0E - EEER RS FE
EEMRE) AEERESBERELEIN
EXFRITHAREKLBAEMER -
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Notes to Financial Statements
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30 June 2010
—ET-TFXA=1H

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based
on daily bank deposit rates. The bank balances are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history
of default. The carrying amount of the cash and bank

balances approximates its fair value.

An aged analysis of the Group’s trade payables at the
end of the respective reporting periods, based on the
invoice date of factoring transactions, is as follows:

RITBAEHERRREHRTERZEBF
RPNFBRBAE - RITEFFAGER
o BT BB R A0 8% 2 R1T - & RIRTT
BEREEEEQFEES -

AEERNEREMNRZIENEZRRERN
REXZERAHPZEREOMAOT ¢

Group
REE
30 June 31 December
2010 2008
—E—TF —ETNF
~A=1+H +=—A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T T
Current to 90 days BENERZ 90K 175,970 499
91 to 120 days 912120k 56,270 -
Over 120 days 120K £ 1,400 =
233,640 499

Trade payables are non-interest-bearing and have
credit periods which range from 90 days to 150 days.
The carrying amounts of trade payables approximate
their fair values.
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30 June 2010
—ZET—TFXA=1H

Group Company
AEH AR
30 June | 31 December 30 June | 31 December
2010 2008 2010 2008
—E-TF —ETNF —E-F —TTNF
NA=TH H+ZA=+—H AA=TH +ZA=+—H
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TAT TET TET
Accruals et B E 13,386 4,540 1,283 2,023
Other payables, other deposits ~ EfER  Hihi e
and receipts in advance KW A 3,693 976 722 722
17,079 5,516 2,005 2,745
Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an EMENRTEE  FHEREHA=M@A -
average term of three months. The carrying amounts REBERARREMENKREEHEE
of the Group’s and the Company’s other payables NEERE
approximate their fair values.
Provision for an onerous contract represents provision BEEAAREEMEERZESI Bz —2
for an unavoidable operating lease payment incurred ROl e v AT B ZAE
under a lease agreement from which no economic 350 & B A (] &OE F 25
benefit is generated.
The balances as at 31 December 2008 was unsecured, HE_ZZN\F+_A=+—HZE%A
interest-free and repayable on demand. During the period mEH - RERAEEREERE -REBEZ
ended 30 June 2010, the amounts were discharged when T-TFNA=THIEHHE  ZERER
the Group disposed of a subsidiary to an independent AEBRBYLE=7HHENB QA KERF
third party. B o

—EEN -BFEEH
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30 June 2010
—T-TFA=+H

As at 30 June 2010, the Group’s other borrowing
represented margin loan borrowing from a financial
institution. The other borrowing is secured by the
Group’s available-for-sale equity investment (note 20),
is interesting bearing at 3% over USD overnight London
Interbank Offered Rate and repayable on demand. The
effective interest rates on the Group’s borrowing during
the period ended 30 June 2010 ranged from 2.28%
to 2.35% per annum.

The other borrowing is denominated in United States
dollar.

The carrying amount of the Group’s other borrowing
approximates its fair value.
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30 June 2010
—ZT—FFXA=1+H

The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the

period/year are as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities — 30 June 2010

SREB(EE)ERAQ A

BN/ FRAZEERBAAEZHNT

ELERBEE-—FT-ZFX A=1H

Group
REHE
Depreciation
allowance in
excess of
related Revaluation
depreciation  of properties Total
HBHERTE
hERTE MEE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
FET TAET FET
At 1 January 2009 RZTZENF—HA—H 134 604 738
Deferred tax charged to HRHGR B ERER BT IE
profit or loss during
the period 548 548 1,096
Disposal of subsidiaries &M B QA (T 5E34(a)
(note 34(a)) (134) (1,152) (1,286)
At 30 June 2010 R-Z—ZTF A=1H 548 - 548

Deferred tax liabilities - 31 December 2008

At 1 January 2008 R_ZEZN\F—-A—H

Deferred tax charged/ FRHIBRE/(GA)
(credited) to profit or Bk ELERE
loss during the year

Effect of change in tax rate Fi REEHFE

At 31 December 2008

R_EENFT-A=+—H

EERBEEE-—ZEENF+=A=+—H

129 807 936
12 (157) (145)
(7) (46) (53)

134 604 738

—z2h /-8 131
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30 June 2010
—E-TFA=1+H

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
HK$54,117,000 (31 December 2008: HK$53,140,000
that are available for offsetting against future taxable
profits of the companies in which the losses arose. The
tax losses as at 30 June 2010 and 31 December 2008
are subject to approval of Inland Revenue Department.
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect
of these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that
have been loss-making for some time and it is not
considered probable that taxable profits will be available
against which the tax losses can be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in Mainland China. The requirement is
effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings
after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate
may be applied if there is a tax treaty between the PRC
and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the
Group, the applicable rate is 10%. The Group is therefore
liable to withholding taxes on dividends distributed to
subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect

of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

At 30 June 2010, no deferred tax has been recognised
for withholding taxes that would be payable on the
unremitted earnings that are subject to withholding
taxes of the Group’s subsidiary established in Mainland
China. In the opinion of the directors, it is not probable
that the subsidiary will distribute such earnings in the
foreseeable future. The aggregate amount of temporary
differences associated with investment in a subsidiary in
Mainland China for which deferred tax liabilities have not
been recognised totalled approximately HK$11,000,000
as at 30 June 2010 (831 December 2008: nil).
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30 June 2010
—T-TFA=T+H

ORDINARY SHARES ZiE R
30 June 31 December
2010 2008
—ET—2F —ETNF
~A=+H +=-—A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$’000
TR TR
Authorised: JETE ¢
5,500,000,000 5,500,000,000% ( = ZZ N\ 4F
(31 December 2008: +=-—RA=+—8":
12,500,000,000) 12,500,000,0000% ) &%
ordinary shares of HECA0B T(ZEZNF
HK$0.10 each +=—A=+—H8: 8k
(31 December 2008: H{EH0.02/8 ) 2 E B
HK$0.02 each) 550,000 250,000
Issued and fully paid: BEEBEITRBERR
3,320,549,520 3,320,549,520 (=& \F
(31 December 2008: +=—A=+—8 :3,672,490,9145%)
3,672,490,914) FREMECI0EIL(ZETNE
ordinary shares of +=—A=+—8: 8K
HK$0.10 each M{E0.02/% ) 2 @Ak
(31 December 2008:
HK$0.02 each) 332,055 73,450
PREFERENCE SHARES BER
30 June 31 December
2010 2008
—E-FF —EENEF
~NA=+H +=ZA=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FET
Authorised: JERE ¢
500 preference shares RZEBEZNF+ZA=+—H5008&
of HK$100,000 each FIEE100,000/8 T 2 B L%
as at 31 December
2008 - 50,000

—gz2h -8 133
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30 June 2010
—ZET-ZTFX A=1H

Movements in the Company’s issued share capital are ARABEBETZRAZEEHNAT :
as follows:
Share
Number of Issued premium
shares in issue capital account Total
R B#f7 &in
RiA#E KA Vil s
Notes HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
Mgk THTL THT THT
At 1 January 2008 RZEEN\F-A—-H 612,081,819 12,242 86,370 98,612
Issue of shares BITRA (@) 3,060,409,095 61,208 = 61,208
3,672,490,914 73,450 86,370 159,820
Share issue expenses R BT E (a) - - (2,420) (2,420)
At 31 December 2008 RZZE\F+-A=+-H
and 1 January 2009 k=ZZNE-A—-H 3,672,490,914 73,450 83,950 157,400

Issue of shares BT (b) 122,000,000 2,440 854 3,294

Shares consolidation Rina 6 (€  (3,699,628,608) = = =

Shares repurchased B0 R ERn

and cancelled (©) (34) - - -

Reduction in share capital B EIR ) - (66,404) - (66,404)

Rights issues i (d) 3,225,317,248 322,532 2,787,054 3,109,586

Issue of shares upon TEERERETRR

exercise of share options (f) 370,000 37 204 241

Release of share option TR BB REREER

reserve Upon exercise (f) - - 64 64
3,320,549,520 332,055 2,872,126 3,204,181

Share issue expenses RiAgTR - - (34,737) (34,737)

At 30 June 2010 RZZ-24,A=1H 3,320,549,520 332,055 2,837,389 3,169,444

Notes: M5 -

(@  On 10 October 2008, the Company, by way of an open (8 RZZTEZEN\F+A+H ARAMZERE
offer to all existing shareholders, issued and allotted REAFREE - %17 R %3,060,409,095
3,060,409,095 ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each at par. The MG EE0.028 T2 T AR - 31T mAk
new ordinary shares rank pari passu with the existing shares ERZAAERODREFTEHNEZERSER -
in all respect. The share issuing expenses of HK$2,420,000 B% 17 3 77 5 12,420,000/ TE 5T A& ZE =
were charged to the share premium account for the year EEN\F+_A=+—HLEFEZRDEE
ended 31 December 2008. R o

(b)  On 6 January 2009, the Company entered into a subscription (b)) RZZTTNF—AARB ARAEH—FBIL
agreement with an independent third party (the “Subscriber”) FE=F(RBEADILRERE Bt R
pursuant to which the Subscriber conditionally agreed to B A B &R =R 122,000,000 & I& &
subscribe for 122,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each BO.02B T2 ARALBEBR  BERAEESE
in the Company at a cash price of HK$0.027 per share. The f80.027% T - FIRDHKR _TZENF— A+
new shares were issued on 19 January 2009 and ranked NBET EFREFEHYEBREROHERR
pari passu with existing shares in all aspects. SRR
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Notes:

()

Pursuant to the ordinary resolutions and special resolutions
passed on 13 May 2009, a capital reorganisation (the
“Capital Reorganisation”) was conducted by the Company
which involved:

(i) the consolidation of every 40 issued and unissued
shares of HK$0.02 each in the share capital of the
Company into 1 consolidated share of HK$0.80
each;

(i) the reduction of the issued share capital of the Company
through a cancellation of the paid-up capital of the
Company to the extent of HK$0.70 on each of the
issued consolidated shares such that the nominal
value of each issued consolidated shares would be
reduced from HK$0.80 to HK$0.10 each;

(iii)  the subdivision of each authorised but unissued
consolidated share of HK$0.80 each (including the
unissued consolidated shares arising from the capital
reduction) into 8 shares of HK$0.10 each;

(iv)  the transfer of the credit arising from the capital
reduction to the contributed surplus account of the
Company; and

(v) the application of the contributed surplus account
of the Company to offset against the entire balance
of the accumulated losses.

Upon the completion of the Capital Reorganisation, the
authorised ordinary share capital of the Company was
increased from HK$250,000,000 divided into 2,500,000,000
shares of HK$0.10 each (the “New Shares”) to HK$550,000,000
divided into 5,500,000,000 New Shares by the creation of
3,000,000,000 New Shares.

In order to avoid fractional shares upon the completion
of the Capital Reorganisation, the Company repurchased
34 ordinary shares of the Company through the Stock
Exchange for a consideration of HK$0.019 per share and
subsequently cancelled them on 20 February 2009. Details
of the Capital Reorganisation are set out in the circular of
the Company dated 20 April 2009 and the addendum to
the circular dated 28 April 2009.

fiaE -

SREB(EE)ERAQ A

RER-_ZZENFAAT=ARBZERR
BERFIRBER  ARAETRAEAE
(TRRAZEA]) EREk :

(i) BARRBRAFEN+RETREE
0.02B T ZBETRRETRNDE B
B— Rk EKmEE0.808 T 2 A H R

7a¥

v

(i) HUBRARBEBEITRAE  HERRE
AR B 2174 0 AR 17 Bl 80. 7078 7T #F 85
RABBMRRA - e BRE BT
& B % 1 2 T 8 8 0.807% 7T Bl Bl =
0.108 7T

(i)  HEERMEEC.80B L Z AT B REST
ARG (B IEE BRI T E £ 2 K
BOTAHRM)IFAR/\REREE
0.10% T2 ’&fp

(iv)  HEEURMRAFRTEE 2 ERBEAKRRA R
ZEANBBE R

v) BRARAZBARRKRIEHZERS
B 2EbAERR o

RAREBATKE ARQAE B
3,000,000,0008% %7 A& 3 © #% & &
75 E @ AR A $250,000,0007 TT( 5
2,500,000,0008% & A% T {E0.107% 7T 2 B 1
(T#TR&m 1)) % hn=550,000,0007 T (5 A
5,500,000,0008% #T B 15 ) °

D

Il o
€ N R

BES FRBRABHEEETHRND - AAF
FERBRMERAARSARLERK  RER
BHRO.019%E T AR _ZTZNF_A=
TEBEFH BRAZHEZFBHRAAA
BRA-—ZTAENA_+AZEK&RAS
AZZETAFMA=-+NBZRBHMER -
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30 June 2010
—T-TFA=+H

Notes:

(d) In June 2009, the Company issued and allotted 853,760,448
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each to the qualifying shareholders
pursuant to the rights issue on the basis of nine rights shares
for every share held as at 14 May 2009 at a subscription price
of HK$0.67 per share. The net proceeds of approximately
HK$562 million after share issue expenses of HK$9,794,000
is to be used for the development of the factoring business
and as the general working capital of the Group.

In November 2009, the Company issued and allotted
2,371,556,800 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each to the
qualifying shareholders pursuant to the rights issue on
the basis of five rights shares for every two shares held as
at 2 November 2009 at a subscription price of HK$1.07
per share. The net proceeds of approximately HK$2,513
million after share issue expenses of HK$24,943,000 is to
be used for the development of the factoring business,
the general working capital of the Group and to engage in
future investment opportunities.

The new shares issued pursuant to the above rights
issues were ranked pari passu with existing shares in all
aspects.

(e) Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the special
general meeting held on 20 January 2010, the Group’s
authorised but unissued preference shares in the amount
of HK$50,000,000 divided into 500 shares with par value
of HK$100,000 each were fully cancelled.

(f) The subscription rights attaching to 370,000 share options
were exercised at the subscription price of HK$0.652 per
share (note 32), resulting in the issue of 370,000 shares
of HK$0.1 each for a total cash consideration, before
expenses, of approximately HK$241,000. The option
reserve of HK$64,000 was released to the share premium
account.

SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the Company’s share option scheme and the
share options issued under the scheme are included
in note 32 to the financial statements.
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The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants thereunder for their
contribution to the Group and/or enabling the Group
to recruit and retain high-calibre employees and attract
human resources that are valuable to the Group and
any entity in which the Group holds an equity interest
(“Invested Entity”). Eligible participants of the Scheme
include the Company’s directors, employees, suppliers
of goods or services, customers, shareholders, business
partners and professional advisers of the Company or
any Invested Entity. The Scheme became effective on
29 January 2004 and, unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that
date.

The maximum number of shares which could be issued
upon exercise of all share options to be granted
under the Scheme was 94,862,272, being an amount
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares
in issue of the Company at 20 July 2009, the date
on which the shareholders of the Company approving
the refreshment of the limit in respect of the granting
of share options under the Scheme. Any further grant
of share options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting. The
maximum number of shares issuable under the share
options to each eligible participant under the Scheme
within any 12-month period, is limited to 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time.

ARARRA BB RS ([&%E])
EESBIEBAERZEERAEEE
HZEBE S AEEENBERRE
BFEREE URSIHAKRERAKEEREE
ERAEA a2 ENERB((EXREER
BHDEABEBEZANER - ZstE8l2A
ERZ2EEBRARAIEMNEZKREER
BLEF EE EmakBHHER &
B-BR ZEBAEBHFREXER - K
FWAUBHER] » ZatdlH —FTFTMF —
AZtThBE+FERBR -

EITER BT R E 2B BRER ]
BT R=RMNEE £94,862,272% -
(REREETER)EERARRRE
THFEEA =18 (BIAR G IR E AL EE
BEABRBZEETEREZ LR Z2A)E
BTN Z210% ° #E — SR H BB ARG
CEREALCKRENBRREAS EiE - R
ER+ @AM - RRERETEITT
Zir BB AR EEZERRNEE -
HUARRBEMEBMEEITROZ1%5
R o
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Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive directors. In addition,
any share options granted to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of
0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time or with an aggregate value (based on the price
of the Company’s share at the date of the grant) in
excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period,
are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a
general meeting. The offer of a grant of share option
may be accepted within 28 days from the date of the
offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of
HK$1 in total by the grantee.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable
by the directors, but may not be less than the highest of
(i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s
shares on the date of the offer of the share options;
(i) the average Stock Exchange closing price of the
Company’s shares for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of the offer; and (iii) the nominal
value of a share of the Company.

Share options do not confer the rights on the holders

to dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.
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The following share options were outstanding during

SREB(EE)ERAQ A

AT BB B M RTTHE

the period:
Weighted average
exercise price Number of
per share options
TR ANHE T AR A
1T1EfE #H
HK$ 000
BT T
At 1 January 2009 RZFEZTNF—H—H = =
Granted during the period REIRF 0.652 90,100
Exercised during the REAALTE
period 0.652 (370)
Lapsed during the period* A 8 A5k &# 0.654 (3,000)
Forfeited during the R AR08 W
period** 0.652 (44,650)
At 30 June 2010 R-ZZE-ZTFA=+H 0.653 42,080

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share
options outstanding as at the end of the reporting
period are as follows:

30 June 2010

RBERRERITEZBREZTEER
TTERMT

Number of options Exercise price per share* Exercise period
—E-ZTFXA=+H
RS E BRRITEE" 1T HEA
’000 HK$
T B TT
3,000 0.654 22/07/2009 - 21/07/2019
1,000 0.652 23/07/2009 - 22/07/2019
4,000 0.654 22/01/2010 - 21/07/2019
7,565 0.652 23/01/2010 - 22/07/2019
4,000 0.654 22/01/2011 - 21/07/2019
7,935 0.652 23/01/2011 - 22/07/2019
4,000 0.654 22/01/2012 — 21/07/2019
10,580 0.652 23/01/2012 — 22/07/2019
42,080

—2B2h/ -BEFEH
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The vesting period of the share options is from the
date of grant until the commencement of the exercise
period.

There was no outstanding option at 1 January 2009. No
options were granted, exercised, cancelled, forfeited or
lapsed during the year ended 31 December 2008.

The exercise price of the share options is subject to
adjustment in case of rights or bonus issues, or other
similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

# During the period ended 30 June 2010, 3,000,000 share
options lapsed upon cessation of employment of a participant
in accordance with terms of the Scheme.

i During the period ended 30 June 2010, 44,650,000 share
options were granted to certain independent third parties for
providing employment services to the Group. The options
were forfeited as the vesting conditions were not fulfilled.

The fair value of the equity-settled share options granted
during the period from 1 January 2009 to 30 June
2010 was estimated by Vigers Appraisal & Consulting
Limited, an independent firm of professionally qualified
valuers, using the binomial option pricing model, taking
into account the terms and conditions upon which the
options were granted. The fair value of the equity-
settled share options granted was HK$22,145,000 of
which the Group recognised a share option expense
of HK$7,201,000 for the period from 1 January 2009
to 30 June 2010. The following table lists the inputs
to the model used:
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HART 4R B o

R-ZETZNF-A-BABERKRITEZE
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¢ O BE-T-TEANAStELEM
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& HE-_Z-—ZTHEXA=ZTALHMHE
44,650,000 ERER R TET B LE=
7 AAAREERBEBRE - BRKREE
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A=+ EHEREYARREEZBR
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Grant date B H 22 July 2009 23 July 2009

—TThF —TTAF

tA=+=H +tA=-+=H

Dividend yield (%) &% B UL %5 (%) N/AZ 3 A N/AT 3 A

Expected volatility (%) TEET R 18 (%) 43.7 43.7

Risk-free interest rate (%) £ 3 B ) 3= (%) 2.328 2.35

Expected life of options (year) fERETEERF HA () 3 3
Weighted average share hnige 3 IR (E

price (HK$ per share) (BHTT) HK$0.657% 7T HK$0.647%8 7T

The expected life of the options is based on the historical
data over the past three year and is not necessarily
indicative of the exercise patterns that may occur.

The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the
historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which
may also not necessarily be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated
into the measurement of fair value.

The 370,000 share options exercised during the period
ended 30 June 2010 resulted in the issue of 370,000
ordinary shares of the Company and new share capital
of approximately HK$37,000 and share premium of
HK$268,000 (before issue expenses), as further detailed
in note 31 to the financial statements.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
42,080,000 share options outstanding under the Scheme.
The exercise in full of the remaining share options would,
under the present capital structure of the Company,
result in the issue of 42,080,000 additional ordinary
shares of the Company and additional share capital of
HK$4,208,000 and share premium of HK$23,258,000
(before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements,
the Company had 42,080,000 share options outstanding
under the Scheme, which represented approximately
1.3% of the Company’s shares in issue as at that
date.

EREBHFHIREBE="F2ELH
BEatE - FERBRKRATBEH R 2 THER
Eﬁ o

BARERBRELKERRRRES 2R

5B A TER IR A PRI 2 K f
R o

REZE-ZE—ZFA=Z+HLHHAEA
370,000 FE RR REIE 1T - B AR A%
77370,000/% L @A - W E £ ¥R AL
37,0007 7t & % 174 (B 268,0005% 7T (AR $0
BRETTIH) - E— PR BEHR B REM
31 e

RMEBR ARAREBEZTEER
42,080,000 1 K171 2 FE AR HE - IREBEAR
NEBERZEREE  ATHRERTH
1T{E RS B BN A B BESNEE1742,080,000%
L AR - 0 E A FB MR AR 4,208,000% T
N 8% 15 4 (823,258,000 7o (K 1 B 31T
X)) e

RELEREFBRRERD - ARARE
% =t &l % 542,080,000 1 & 17 £ 2 &
i EARARARZAZEETROL
1.83% °

—2B2h/ -BEFEH
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(a) GROUP
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current period and prior

(a) ~&E
AEBREMPBRBEFE ZHEE
CHEREZHZIINREE=EHR

year are presented in the consolidated statement A o
of changes in equity.
(b) COMPANY (b) &AT
Retained
Share Share profits/
premium option Contributed (accumulated
account reserve surplus losses) Total
®ip iR AN REERH/
BER Fifa Bt (Z:BiE) Ch
Notes HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
iz THT THL THL TR THET
At 1 January 2008 R=ZZ\§-A—H 86,370 - 202,809  (182,226) 106,953
Total comprehensive loss FEZABELER
for the year 12 - - - (101,480)  (101,480)
Share issue expenses RipBa%H 31(a) (2,420) = = = (2,420)
At 31 December 2008 and RZZEN\FTZA
1 January 2009 =+-Bk
ZZTNE
—A—-8 83,950 - 202,809 (283,706 3,053
Total comprehensive income HAZENAER
for the period 12 - - - 82,469 82,469
Issue of shares ki 31(b) 854 - - - 854
Reduction in share capital RN 31(c) - - 66,404 = 66,404
Transfer EEb 31(c) - - (269,213) 269,213 -
Rights issues i 31(d) 2,787,054 - - - 2,787,054
Share issue expenses R ETx 31(d) (34,737) - - = (34,737)
Equity-settled share option NEREE
expenses f e S 32 - 7,201 - = 7,201
Lapsed share options RN e - (397) - 397 -
Issue of shares upon TRERE
exercise of share options REARN 268 (64) = = 204
At 30 June 2010 RZT-TF
~A=TH 2,837,389 6,740 - 68,373 2,912,502

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of
share options granted which are yet exercised, as
further explained in the accounting policy for share-
based payment transactions in note 3.4 to the financial
statements. The amount will either be transferred to the
share premium account when the related options are
exercised, or be transferred to retained profits should
the related options expire or be lapsed.
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(a)

FOR THE PERIOD FROM 1 JANUARY 2009 TO

30 JUNE 2010

As disclosed in note 13 to the financial statements,

the Group disposed of the property investment

operation during the period ended 30 June 2010.

The net liabilities of the Lion Castle Group together

SREB(EE)ERA A

(a) —EENF-—AR—-HEZF—

A=+tBHME

AN T MR M 13T EE

ERBE_Z-—ZEFRA=TRHILH

BEA

AEH

fEHHEMERE XIS  Lion Castlef:
I&$’il}5ﬁﬁ§2ﬁﬁﬁ¥ﬁ§“’

with other subsidiaries disposed of at the respective EXBgHERcaBEFENT
dates of the disposal are as follows:
Lion Castle Other
Group subsidiaries Total
Lion Castle Hith
£E NG A&
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FitzE AT THT FHT
Net liabilities disposed of: FroEREFE -
Investment properties REWE 17 22,000 = 22,000
Plant and equipment KB REE 16 105 - 105
Trade and other receivables BIKE FEEF R
H YRR 1,390 242 1,632
Cash and bank balances fﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁéﬁﬁ 233 = 233
Trade and other payables BB 587
HW’EHM (1,512) 271) (1,783)
Amounts due to immediate ERNERERAARE
holding companies (118,858) (195,410) (314,268)
Amounts due to minority NG
shareholders of a subsidiary DERRR 2 FIE - (1,160) (1,160)
Tax payable BRI (2,198) = ,198)
Deferred tax liabilities EEHEAR 30 (1,286) - (1,286)
(100,126) (196,599) (296,725)
Assignment of amounts due to ~ EEEMNEHE
immediate holding companies BRARZIE 118,858 195,410 314,268
18,732 (1,189) 17,543
Gain on disposal of discontinued 1 & 4 IF & &
operations 3 g 13 1,101 = 1,101
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries  HEMED Az Yias = 1,189 1,189
1,101 1,189 2,290
19,833 - 19,833
Satisfied by: ANV ESEE
Cash Be 19,833 - 19,833

—2B2h/ -BEFEH
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(a)

(b)

FOR THE PERIOD FROM 1 JANUARY 2009 TO (a) —BEAE—B—HE=-Z—Z2&X
30 JUNE 2010 (Continued) B=1+HHE(E)
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash ERALENBATI RS NIEAESE
equivalents in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries EASEEATMOT
is as follows:
Lion Castle Other
Group subsidiaries Total
Lion Castle Hit
&E (hl=UNS) A%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET TET TAET
Cash consideration BeRE 19,833 = 19,833
Cash and bank balances T ERERRTER
disposed of (233) - (233)
Net inflow of cash and BRLENBARzRE
cash equivalents in FReEERNFE
respect of disposal of
subsidiaries 19,600 - 19,600
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008 (b) BE—ZEZENF+-A=+—BLEFE

As disclosed in note 13, the Group disposed of
the cruise and cruise-related operation and ceased
its trading of glass eel during the year ended
31 December 2008. The net liabilities of Quick
Treasure Group together with other subsidiaries

at the dates of disposal were as follows:
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(b) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

(Continued)

SREB(EE)ERA A

(b) BE=ZEENF+ZB=+—HLHF
(%)

NOjEe HK$ 000
B 5 T T
Net liabilities disposed of: P& & (E 453 -
Plant and equipment 28 N 5 A 16 62,452
Trade and other FEWE ZERR R
receivables H b & U BR =X 2,861
Cash and bank balances IR & RiE1TEF 2,802
Trade and other payables EfRTESERK
H M JE < 5K I8 (5,381)
Amount due to immediate B EH
holding company b2 /NI (157,285)
(94,551)
Assignment of an amount B H
due to immediate b NCIE
holding company 157,285
62,734
Gain on disposal of HERB A Rz W
subsidiaries =
62,734
Satisfied by: ATH AR A
Cash b 62,734

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash

equivalents in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries

is as follows:

FRLEMNBRARIZEE KRS EE
MAFBEDONT :

HK$'000
FAT
Cash consideration RBeE 62,734
Cash and bank balances FrHER S &
disposed of BeEEE (2,802)
Net inflow of cash and ERLENBARZRE
cash equivalents in MBS EBEMRAFRE
respect of the disposal
of subsidiaries 59,932

—2B2h/ -BEFEH
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MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

During the period ended 30 June 2010, the Group
has acquired an available-for-sale investment at an
acquisition cost of HK$232,809,000 of which a portion
of the investment cost of HK$84,659,000 was satisfied
by a margin loan.

(a) AS LESSOR

In prior years, the Group leased its investment
properties (details of which are disclosed in note
17 to the financial statements) under operating
lease arrangements, with leases negotiated for a
term of two years. The terms of the leases also
required the tenants to pay security deposits and
provide for periodic rent adjustments according
to the then prevailing market conditions.

At 30 June 2010, there were no operating lease
receivable commitments.

At 31 December 2008, the Group had total future
minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable
operating leases falling due as follows:

EAERERS
HE_Z—ZTFAA=Z+HILHME &%
EEWE—BAHLERE  WEXAK
£232,809,000/ T+ H A 35 &% & KA
84,659,000/ L I AR ER I -

(a) FERHBEA
RBEFE  ARERBEEHROR
FREREMEHBA(FERENY
BHRERMZE17) RREFEOERZ
FHAME - HOKRTEREEX
NEFRREIRERRERRITHR
EHRHABRHEE -

RZZE-ZTFRA=1H HELE
T4 FE WORHE -

R-ZBN\F+-A=+—0 %%
452420 7 T 806 4 A4 TR 40 2 R R UK
REHAS@ENHAMT

Within one year —F K
In the second to FEERF
fifth years, inclusive (BEEEME)
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Group

A%
30 June 31 December
2010 2008
—E—ZF —EENF
ANA=1H +=ZA=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET T T
- 948
- 976
- 1,924
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30 June 2010
—Z—FTFEXA=1+H

(b) AS LESSEE

The Group leases certain of its office properties
under operating lease arrangements. Leases for
properties are negotiated for terms from one to

three years (year ended 31 December 2008: two

to six years).

At 30 June 2010, the Group had total future

minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

(b) MEARFEBEA

AEERBEEHOLHBAETS
FEME - RUFVEEOERZTF
PR 2=F(BE-_TTN\F+=
A=+—BLEE MEAF)

RZZE-—ZFXA=1+H FAEER
BAARGEEEHOZ AR KERE

operating leases falling due as follows: BEINBHBET :
Group
AEHE
30 June 31 December
2010 2008
—E-TF ZEENF
~NA=+H +ZA=+—H
HK$’'000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Within one year —F R 13,810 4,658
In the second to F_EERF
fifth years, inclusive (BIEEEMS) 27,164 8,246
40,974 12,904

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had

no significant operating lease commitments (year ended EEHZ2-_ZEZN\F+

31 December 2008: Nil).

At the end of the reporting period, neither the Group

B &) e

RMEHRR - NRALEEREEHEO A

—A=+—81t#&

RI|BEYR  NEERARQF L EEFE

nor the Company had any other significant commitment EAFARE(EHZE_EZEN\E+_A=+—
(year ended 31 December 2008: Nil). HIEFE : &)

—2B2h/ -BEFEH
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(@) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere
in these financial statements, the Group had the
following transactions with related parties during
the period/year:

B e S B A SRR R A B R A 38
%'$%IM%W/¢W£%@A¢
EITATRS -

Group
AEE
Period from
1 January 2009 Year ended
to 30 June 31 December
2010 2008
—ETNhF H=E
—H—Ra=® ZEENF
—E-EF +=—A=+—H
NAZ+TBHHE IEFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT T T
Transactions with related  EARRA A £ BAEE
companies in which HEERIERER
a substantial shareholder ZBERARZRS :
of the Company has
controlling beneficial
interests:
Brokerage commission BERELERE
paid 4,371 -
Commission paid for ENBEARAQF
underwriting the i a vkl
Company’s shares 25,394 =
Financial advisory fees R E A 10 =

The above transactions are charged on bases
mutually agreed with the respective parties.

The related party transactions above also constituted
connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions as defined in chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

In addition to the above, as at 30 June 2010,
a deposit of HK$283,662,000 was placed at a
financial institution, a related company, for the
Group’s financial investment activities. Further
details are set out in note 22 to the financial
statements. The related company is a company
beneficially controlled by a substantial shareholder
of the Company.
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SREB(EE)ERA A

(b) Compensation of key management personnel of (b) AEBEFTEIE A S ZHEN
the Group:
Group
AEHE
Period from
1 January 2009 Year ended
to 30 June 31 December
2010 2008
—ETNF HE
—A—H=E —ETNEF
—ET-TF +=—A=+—H
NA=1+BHM 1EFE
HK$’ 000 HK$’000
FAET FHE T
Short term employee HEEEREA
benefits 3,680 1,592
Equity-settled share DAt EE 2
option expenses M ARSI 2,586 =
6,266 1,692

Key management personnel of the Group
are its directors. Further details of director’s
emoluments are included in note 9 to the financial
statements.

AEBETREBRABREES &
FHe 2 E—FHBRENMBHHRERM

9 e

—2B2h/ -BEFEH
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—E-TFXA=1H

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of EHeMmIANSHEH R EEEBEN
financial instruments as at the end of the respective ™
reporting periods are as follows:
GROUP - 30 JUNE 2010 rEE-—Z—FFA=1+H
Financial assets THEE
Financial
assets at fair Available-
value through for-sale
profit or loss —=  Loans and financial
held for trading  receivables asset Total
 RBE
BAFERE
ZeMEE BERE  AfAE \
—EEE FEM IR TREE a&t
HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FH T FHET FAT T T
Available-for-sale investment AJ it &% & - - 175,623 175,623
Derivative financial TEeRmTE
instruments 16,027 - - 16,027
Trade receivables FEWE FBRX - 1,566,109 - 1,566,109
Financial assets included STATE IR - B
in prepayments, deposits R B At & WK IR
and other receivables ZeREE = 298,397 = 298,397
Cash and bank balances e RRITHETRT - 1,537,870 - 1,537,870
16,027 3,402,376 175,623 3,594,026
Financial liabilities THEE
HK$’000
FAL
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: BEEKARE 2 cRaE
Trade payables e B 5 BR 3K 233,640
Financial liabilities included &1 A E fth FE A 5R I8
in other payables ZERBE 2,652
Other borrowing HifEE 85,371
321,663
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GROUP - 31 DECEMBER 2008 rEE-—ZZN\F+=B=+—H
Financial assets THEE
Financial
assets at fair Available-
value through for-sale
profit or loss =  Loans and financial
held for trading  receivables asset Total
BATERE
ZEREE- R Kk

Al
BIEEE MEKHE  SREE Gl
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTAT TATT TATT THAT

Trade receivables FEWE S BR X = 87 = 87
Cash and bank balances Re RIRTTET - 20,757 - 20,757
- 20,844 - 20,844
Financial liabilities EHEE
HK$’000
FET
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: BMERAREEZSRAE
Trade payables JETE 5 ERR 499
Amounts due to minority JE 1< BT B8 2 R)
shareholders of a subsidiary DERRR 2 FKIB 1,160
1,659
COMPANY PN
All the Company’s financial assets as at 30 June RZE—ZTFAA=THEHER=ZZTZENF T
2010 and 31 December 2008, including amounts due “HA=1+—HB ' ARafiEsREE(BRE
from subsidiaries, deposits and other receivables, FEULH B AR 238 ~ e K E M E UK
and cash and bank balances are categorised as BUARRERIBITHEF)EHBERERRE
loans and receivables. WRIA o
The Company has no significant financial liabilities R-ZE—ZFEXA=ZFTHE-_ZTN\EFE+
as at 30 June 2010 and 31 December 2008. “A=T—B ARG TEEREHEE
(==
E\ o

—z2h /-8 151
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—Z—FTFEXA=1+H

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining
and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments:

ARERATHEBEEREBEBIA
ZAFE -

Level 1: fair values measured based on quoted prices F1fh . AFEERERMS EEUEE
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical SBEIRECREAR)GTE
assets or liabilities

Level 2: fair values measured based on valuation Fof . AFEEREHERAE(HHFARD
techniques for which all inputs which have TFTEEKERTZEZZFBHA
a significant effect on the recorded fair value DEESEENR)TE
are observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3: fair values measured based on valuation F3k . AFEEMEFE(EHBAERAD
techniques for which all inputs which have TEBEXEAZEZAMEEA
a significant effect on the recorded fair value I FEAR 5 7] A T 45 EUE VE S (B
are not based on observable market data TRl R A) ) E
(unobservable inputs)

As at 30 June 2010, the Group held the following MN-E—FEXA=+H AEEHFFIU

financial instruments measured at fair value: THEATFEFEZE/mIA

Assets measured at fair value as at 30 June 2010: RZE-—ZFNA=THELAFEFEZ

BE -
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F1H FE2M B3/ =X
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’\0070
T T T T T T T T
Available-for-sale equity  A[{ftHH ERAIKE
investment 175,623 = = 175,623
Financial assets at fair RERRZE AL ERE
value through LEMBEE
profit or loss 16,027 = = 16,027
191,650 - - 191,650

During the period ended 30 June 2010, there
were no transfers into or out of Level 3 fair value
measurements.

Annual Report 2009/10
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The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise
other borrowing and, cash and bank balances. The
main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise
finance for the Group’s operations. The Company has
various other financial assets and liabilities such as
trade receivables, trade payables, financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss and available-for-sale
investment which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
credit risk, liquidity risk and equity price risk. The board
of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks and they are summarised below.

INTEREST RATE RISK

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to its short term borrowing
at floating interest rate. The Group has not used any
interest rate swaps to hedge its interest rate risk.

At present, the Group does not intend to seek to hedge
its exposure to interest rate fluctuations. However, the
Group will constantly review the economic situation and
its interest rate risk profile, and will consider appropriate

hedging measures in futures as may be necessary.

At as 30 June 2010, if interest rates had been 50 basis
points higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group ‘s profit before tax for the period
would decrease/increase by approximately HK$427,000.
This is mainly attributed to the Group’s exposure to the
interest rates on its variable-rate other borrowing. The
Group was not exposed to interest rate risk in 2008 as
the Group did not have any interest-bearing borrowings
for the year ended 31 December 2008.

AEEZIZoRMTABEEMEERR
EMRTEF ZREERMTAZIEARN
RESAEEREMTESR - ARANE
CEABSREENARE  fINERES
B BNESENX  REZEERAFE
BREZGHEERAHHERE - THHE
REXGEEIRE °

AEEBEMTAMELEZTERR AN
Rk - SNEER - ERRAR - RBESRE
BREBERR EFSEELREER
SR REERR EABTHANT -

R R @b

AEEEH cMENEECCRREEEH
HFRRMEE - AKEYEER T
v PR E R R E R

B AT - AKE S K E A bR 2 A
KRR - AT ARBERFEEHLE
EARAREMRERNKR  ERKEFE
- 5 BERBUE E SRS o

RZB-—FFXA=+TH MAELFAF/
TrHESOEERMEMMARRRIETE -
RIS B B 2 R 156 A g AR 4> 48 hn
#)427,0008 L - EXTBERBENAEEH
H ¥ BEMEEM®EEZ N RE R -
HRAKBRBEE_TTENFT_A=1
—BLEFEYEREMASMEE  RAKHE
R-ZFZTN\FLERENEER

—2B2h/ -BEFEH
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INTEREST RATE RISK (Continued)

The Group does not have any significant exposure to
risk of changes in market interest rates in relation to
bank balances as it mainly represents demand deposits
in banks.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The Group’s trade receivables, trade payables, available-
for-sale investment and other borrowing are denominated
in United States dollars (“US dollars”), being currency
other than the functional currency of the relevant group
entities, which expose the Group to foreign currency
risk. The Group has not used any financial instruments
to hedge against currency risk. However, management
monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should
the need arise.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the
end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible
change in the US dollars exchange rate, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax
(due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets
and liabilities).

=g (E)
AEBYEEMNABRTEFZEATS
MEgsREk REXTESRTANF

=
/NI

SNES [ B

AEBZRWEZERNR BNEZER -
AfHEREREMERAET(IET])
AHE METYFEBEEEERBZER
B emEARERENERR - AEE
WEFEREMEMI A RINERR - A
m:EEEEERIERR EAFE
B - EREINERINERE o

TRIIREL A EBRETEZ 1R
T+ BB HIR A B 2 B BB
TEEABTRED G (R E%E
ERAEZATEED) -

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease) Increase/
foreign in profit (decrease)
currency rate before tax in equity*
NS E & BR 75 A1 48 A REmiEm,/
EH/(TR) #m/ Cis) OR )
% HK$'000 HK$'000
T THT
30 June 2010 —Z-TERA=TH
If Hong Kong dollar weakens — fii& L X & 085
against US dollars 0.5% (427) 878
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens 87T =%
against US dollars 0.5% 427 (878)

*  Excluding retained profits
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FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK (Continued)

The Group did not have significant exposure to foreign
currency risk for the year ended 31 December 2008
as the Group did not have significant foreign currency
denominated financial assets and liabilities at as 31
December 2008.

The Group constantly reviews the economic situation
and its foreign currency risk profile, and considers
implementing appropriate hedging measures in future
if the need arises.

CREDIT RISK

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s
exposure to bad debts is not significant. The Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
trade debtor at the end of the reporting period to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for

irrecoverable amounts.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets,
which comprise cash and bank balances, available-for-
sale investment and derivative financial instruments at
fair value through profit or loss, arises from default of
the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to

the carrying amounts of these instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement for
collateral.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables
are disclosed in note 21 to the financial statements.

SRR B (48

HRAEER _ETENF+-_A=1+—~H
TENINEFECEREHEERAE -
BEBE_TTN\F+_A=1T—HLHF
B AEEYTESAINERR -

7 5 5 5 A R 0 AR RO B EL AN LR
KR ERRALER - ERE A
04 o

1= ARk

AEEERKRAN  FRREZEZT
R BBAKBZBR  THHERE
RAGANTARSZCEFPETERZE -
I BRERZBEAZHEER  BR
AREBZERERRIKN - AEEENHRE
HARSSRESBERIATKEEE - A
HEOR Bt S AT W B & BE AT T 50K 18 /RS 18 3
fa e

AEEEBEREE(RRRE RRTE
7 AIHHEERBELRREZRRAFER
BZTEER TR ZERARREE XY
FEX  HZARBRBOSENELTAZE
[ERER

HRAREERERIEEERIZES
TR5 - HESERm -

ERAEEREWRESRAMA Y 2EH
R zE— P TEE=REER  FHRTBER
=HIFE21 ©

—2B2h/ -BEFEH
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LIQUIDITY RISK

The Group’s objective is to ensure adequate funds
to meet commitments associated with its financial
liabilities. Cash flows are closely monitored on an
ongoing basis. The Group will raise funds either
through the financial markets or from the realisation
of its assets if required.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
the Group’s available cash.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities
as at the end of the respective reporting periods,
based on the contractual undiscounted payments,
was as follows:

REE L E
AEBZBEEREEADNSENESRMER
BHESmMBE AL - fﬁimuéZla/Rx
FSETYER - WEFE - AEEHEB
/Em%jﬁiﬁéﬁw%éi ©

AEEZBEEREBERAKE ZAIRR
SEESHBEEEBEEE 2RSS TE -

REREHR - RESHRBBMF - K
SEZERBEINHRROT ¢

Group — 30 June 2010 AEBH - _T—FFA=1H
Less than 3to 1t05
On demand 3 months 12 months years Total
D 3% \
JEZ% 3fEA 1218 R 1555 G
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
THT THT THT FTHET THT
Trade payables BN E 5 & - 57,840 175,800 - 233,640
Financial liabilities included in st AEAMERFIEZ
other payables TRAE 17 2,635 - = 2,652
Other borrowing HifgE 85,371 - - - 85,371
85,388 60,475 175,800 - 321,663
Group - 31 December 2008 AEE - —EZEN\F+=-_A=+—H
Less than 3to 1t05
On demand 3 months 12 months years Total
PR R
JEZ % 3fEA 128 A 1254 G
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
THT THT THT THT THIT
Trade payables B SR % - 499 = = 499
Amounts due to minority BRI DE
shareholders of a subsidiary R 2 RE 1,160 = = = 1,160
1,160 499 - - 1,659
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LIQUIDITY RISK (Continued)

The Company did not have significant exposure to
liquidity risk as it did not have significant financial
liabilities as at the end of the respective reporting
periods.

EQUITY PRICE RISK

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of
equity securities decrease as a result of changes in
the levels of equity indices and the value of individual
securities. The Group is exposed to equity price risk
arising from individual equity investments classified as
available-for-sale investment (note 20) as at 30 June
2010. The Group’s listed investment is listed on the
New York Stock Exchange and are valued at quoted
market prices at the end of the reporting period.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every
5% change in the fair values of the equity investment,
with all other variables held constant and before any
impact on tax, based on the carrying amounts at
the end of the reporting period. For the purpose of
this analysis, for the available-for-sale investment,
the impact is deemed to be on the available-for-sale
equity investment revaluation reserve and no account
is given for factors such as impairment which might
impact on profit or loss.

SREB(EE)ERA A

nBEEER(E)
HRARBARERERRLEEA LA
& MARRAESKNREE SRR -

% B L B

PR (E & b 7 AR AR 3E 25 B B AR SR 468 30K
FRENEFZSMBAI2EAR - KR -F
—ZEFXRA=+TH AEBRENDER
AT E R E (M 5E20) 2 R i B
BERR - NEEZ EWRETIRAE
HZRPHLET  ARBEPRRZTHRE
RN

TRIVRAR M FTA B BHREE A& BT
REFBRBTERAE  REZREHRZ
RHEME  SERAREQFESEE5%
ZHBEE - EADHF > BAIHHERE
mE  HEFERESEARAHEER
A EEEEHE - AT RBMES AR
EBRmRZAER -

Carrying amount of
equity investments

Change in the
Group’s equity*

AR E $§.‘%Z
ZREE s E e
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT T
30 June 2010 —E-TFA=TH
Investment listed in: RTHIBEREMZIEE
the United States — EB-AHEE
Available-for-sale 175,623 8,781

During the year ended 31 December 2008, there
were no equity investment carried at fair value.

*

Excluding retained profits

HE_ZZN\F+-_A=1+—HLFE
BERAFEIEZRARE -

* NEERE R

—2B2h/ -BEFEH
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—Z—FTFEXA=1+H

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in
order to support its business and maximise shareholders’
value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes during the period from 1 January 2009 to 30
June 2010 and the year ended 31 December 2008.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-
to-equity ratio which is calculated as total bank and
other borrowings divided by total equity of the Group.
The debt-to-equity ratio as at the end of the respective
reporting periods were as follows:

ESEE
AEEEREG T EBERRBRASE
FEEE RN REFBRCERNL X -
INXFHEEBRERRBEBERAL -

AEBERBEENRRIBEEE 2 ERE
BEBHREARBRIELAR - BBEFX
AEEANRE  ARENGHEMN TR
ZRE - ERARE R R BT -

= TEHARBE_TENFT A=+
—HLEFE ZFBE BRIGERELE

AEERBEREZEDLE(RASE 2R
ThREMEERERNEERTE)ER
BAR - NEREHR2EHEEER L RN
™

30 June 31 December

Group 2010 2008
AEHE —ET—ZF —EENF
NAZFA +=—A=+—H

HK$’000 HK$’000

FAT FET

Other borrowing HEmEE 85,371 =
Total debt I 4% 85,371 =
Total equity B 3,254,844 85,801
Debt-to-equity ratio (EREREEYs: g s 2.6% -
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As further explained in note 3.2 to the financial
statements, due to the adoption of new and revised
HKFRSs during the current period, the presentation of
certain items and balances in the financial statements
have been revised to comply with the new requirements.
Accordingly, certain comparative amounts have been
reclassified to conform with the current period’s

presentation.

As detailed in notes 13 and 15 to the financial statements,
certain comparative amounts in relation to basic and
diluted loss per share calculations for the year ended
31 December 2008 have been restated as a result of
share consolidation and right issues during the current
period.

In addition, the comparative profit or loss has been re-
presented as if the operation discontinued during the
current period had been discontinued at the beginning

of the comparative period (note 13).

The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 9 September
2010.

INEA TS SR M RES 2P RE AL - BRI E AT HA
BB ] MBI BT HmEER -
MBRERFETRAREHZIERTAD
RIEETUATAFRE - Bt - HETHLES
MOKBEF D BUNTEE AT HRE < 51| &
IR e

Sz

NEF TS SRR M FE13 A5 - A E Al
HEETTROEHEER  AtETHE
BEHE _ZEN\F+_A=+—RHIEE
BREARBEBFEAEZLBRSBLE
=5 -

AN - L ECE MR BECEH 25 - B
ERHECEREREXEBERELRAT
R E - (PEE13) »

PHERERENR=ZZ

T-TFNANBEES
SHUEIN R AR T -
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Five-Year Financial Summary

AFMBERE

Period from Year ended 31 December
1 January 2009 BHEt-A=Z+—HLEE
to 30 June 2010 2008 2007 2006 2005
—ZTNE
—-A—-B% ZET\F “ER4E “EERE “TR1F
—2-%F (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
~R=TEEE (&51) (&%) (&51) (E31)
RESULTS HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ES FHL T T THL FHL
TURNOVER e 1
Continuing operations BREER 249,253 14,487 16,955 16,588 10,064
Discontinued operations BREREER 743 68,185 69,424 34,589 16,675
249,996 82,672 86,379 51,177 26,739
Profit/(Loss) RORIERFEAEA
attributable to equity Elhas/ (58)
holders of the company 127,013 (147,510) (35,463) 73,426 (150,640)
Minority interests DYRRE - - (207) 128 179
Profit/(Loss) for the year rEERT/(BR) 127,013 (147,510) (35,670) 73,554 (150,461)
As at 30 June As at 31 December
[iVaY: = “+=A=t-H
2010 2008 2007 2006 2005
—2-%F —2IN\F Z2Et+E ZEERE “ZZTRE
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
MINORITY INTERESTS (&31) (251) (&51) (E51)
EE  8f58 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
DERRER T THT T T T
Total assets EEGE 3,613,128 98,571 197,176 154,471 95,255
Total liabilities RBEBE (367,284) (12,770) (22,653) (19,616) (59,846)
Minority interests DERRE - = = (207) (179)
3,245,844 85,801 174,523 134,648 35,230
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